
 

 

 

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 

 

 

December 13, 2022 
 
 

Regular Board  

Meeting Package 

 

 

 
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING # 2 
 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING. 

 

 

Tuesday, December 13, 2022 
Time: 7:00 pm CST 

Virtual Meeting 
(Google Link for internal use only) 

AGENDA 
 

1.  Call to Order Chair 
 

2.  Roll Call 
 

Observers may participate by submitting questions regarding the 
agenda items presented at the meeting this evening to the following 
email address ‘questions@kpdsb.ca’.  Questions will be responded to 
under the agenda item, Observer Comments.  
 

Exec Asst 
 

Chair 

3.  Approval of Agenda for December 13, 2022       Chair 
 

4.  Declaration of Conflict of Interest Chair 
 

5.  Business Arising from Committee of the Whole  
 

Chair 
 

6.  Confirmation of Minutes  
6.01 – Regular Board Meeting October 11, 2022 ∆ 

6.02 – Inaugural Board Meeting November 15, 2022 ∆     
6.03 – Special Board Meeting November 29, 2022 ∆ 
 

Chair 
 
 
 

7.  Presentations/Delegations  Chair 
 

8.  Presentation of Reports and Accompanying Motions  Chair 
 

8.01  
A. Declaration of Office – Norine Van Breda 

● Trustee for areas of Pickle Lake, Savant Lake and Upsala  

B. Trustee Appointment to Committees   

(i) Trustee Code of Conduct – Alternate  

(ii) Parent Involvement Committee  

(iii) Special Education Advisory Commitment 

 

Chair  

8.02  2021-22 Draft Financial Statements for year ended August 31, 2022 ∆  
 
         Presentation will include a detailed financial analysis with variance 
         explanations based on:  

• Revenue and Expenditures:   
- 2021-22 Actual v Budget 

 

• Revenue and Expenditures and Balance Sheet:   
-  2021-22 Actual v Prior Year 

R. Findlay 
 
 
 

R. Findlay  
N. Pearson 

 
J. Pyzer 
Whetter 



Keewatin-Patricia District School Board  
Regular Board Meeting  

December 13, 2022 
 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING. 

8.03 Education  
A. Students Come First – Crolancia PS   
● “Embedding the Mishkeegogamang Perspective” 

 

B. 2022-2023 Board Improvement Plan Report ∆  
C. Director’s Annual Report ∆  

 

  
S. Norlock 

 
 
 

S. Bailey 
C. Radbourne   

8.04 Executive Committee Report 
A. Student Trustees’ Reports 
 
B. Policy 612, Advocacy ∆  

 

 
G. Tucker / 

D. McDonald 
C. Radbourne  

8.05 Finance / Audit  
A. Policy 603, Donations ∆ 

 
R. Findlay 

 
8.06 Human Resources  

A. Policy 332 – Accessibility Standards for Customer Service ∆ 

B. Policy 615, Accessibility Standards for Information and 

Communication ∆ 

 

 
S. Bailey 
S. Bailey 

 
 
 

8.07 Operations 
A. Policy 403, Use of Copyright-Protected Works ∆ 

 

R. Findlay  

8.08 Committee Updates 
A. Early Years Advisory Committee - nil 
B. Audit and Finance Committee – Nov 29th and Dec. 13th 
C. Indigenous Education Advisory Committee – nil  
D. Ontario Public School Boards’ Association – monthly  
E. Parent Involvement Committee – nil  
F. Special Education Advisory Committee – Dec 14th  
G. Supervised Alternative Learning – nil 

 
 

R. Findlay 
 

G. Kleist 
 

C. Moore  
   

 
9.  Correspondence  ∆   

10.  New Business and Notices of Motion 
 

 

11.  Observer Comments 
 

 

12.  Next Meeting Date:  January 10, 2023 

● Regular Board Meeting held virtually  

Chair 

13.  Adjournment 
 

Chair 

 
  ∆ indicates an attachment included in the meeting package 

 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING #9 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING. 

 

The minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of the Keewatin-Patricia District School 

Board Tuesday, October 11, 2022, held via virtual meeting.  

 

Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. 
 

Roll Call  
 
 
 
 
 

D. Cornish M. Duncalfe B. Gauthier 
D. Head R. Griffiths  G. Kleist 
J. Kitowski R. O’Donohue  
D. McDonald, ST G. Tucker, IST  
  

Absent with Regret 
 

C. Marcino    

Absent without Regret 
 

E. Bortlis   

Officials 
 
 

C. Radbourne R. Findlay S. Bailey 
J. Lower C. Moore S. Pilipishen  
Exec Assistant 
 

  

Also Present 
 

Media, Staff, and the Interested Public 

Item 3 - Agenda 
 
Motion 211-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Robert O’Donohue 
Seconded by: Gerald Kleist  
THAT the agenda for the Regular Board Meeting of October 
11, 2022, be approved as amended to include the following 
changes:  

• Agenda item 8.02D – Board Meeting Schedule – 

November board meeting date change 

• Agenda item 8.04B – Policy 704 – Deferred  

• Agenda item 8.06F – Appointment of SEAC Committee 

Members  

 
Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Conflict of Interest None 
 

Item 6.01 – Minutes 
September 13, 2022 
 
Motion 212-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Jennifer Kitowski 
Seconded by: Darrin Head 
THAT the minutes of September 13, 2022, Regular Board 
Meeting, having been duly circulated, be confirmed.   
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X    
 

 
  



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

OCTOBER 11, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

Item 8.01A – Students’ 
Come First  
 
Motion 213-22 
 

Moved by: Barb Gauthier 
Seconded by:  Marilyn Duncalfe  
THAT the Students’ Comes First Presentation be received.  
“Forest School:  A Day in the Life of a Kindergarten Student” 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 

Item 8.01B – 
Indigenous Education 
Report  
 
Motion 214-22 
 

Moved by: David Cornish  
Seconded by: Bob O’Donohue 
Presented by Len Gardner, Indigenous Education Lead  
 
THAT the Indigenous Education Lead Report 2022-2023 be 
received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X    
. 

   
Item 8.02A – Student 
Trustee  
 
Motion 215-22 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by: Barb Gauthier  
THAT the Student Trustee verbal reports be received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Item 8.02B – #210 
Policy 
 
Motion 216-22 
 
 

Moved by: Darrin Head  
Seconded by:  Jennifer Kitowski  
THAT Policy 210, Expenses of Trustees and Appointed 
Members, be received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X    
. 

Item 8.02B – #210 
 
Motion 217-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Gerald Kleist  
Seconded by:  Bob O’Donohue  
THAT Policy 210, Expenses of Trustees and Appointed 
Members, be approved as amended with the next review 
date in year 2026. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X    
.       

Item 8.02C - #211 Policy  
 
Motion 218-22 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by:  Barb Gauthier  
THAT Policy 211, Trustee Honoraria, be received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 
 
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

OCTOBER 11, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

Item 8.02C – #210 

 
Motion 219-22 
 
 
 

Moved by:  Darrin Head  
Seconded by:  Jennifer Kitowski  
THAT Policy 211, Trustee Honoraria, be approved as 
amended with the next review date in year 2026. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.02D – Board 
Meeting Schedule  
 
Motion 220-22 
 
 

Moved by: David Cornish  
Seconded by:  Bob O’Donohue  
THAT the Draft Board Meeting Schedule for year 2022-2023 
be received.  

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .  
      

Item 8.02D– Amended 
Board Meeting 
Schedule 
 
Motion 221-22 
 
 

Moved by: Gerald Kleist  
Seconded by:  Jennifer Kitowski  
THAT the Draft Board Meeting Schedule for year 2022-2023 
be approved as amended. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.03A –  
By-law #70 
 
Motion 222-22 
 
 

Moved by: Barb Gauthier  
Seconded by:  Gerald Kleist  
THAT the verbal report on By-law #70 be received. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item – 8.03 A 
 
Motion 223-22 
 
 

Moved by: Jennifer Kitowski 
Seconded by: Bob O’Donohue  
THAT By-law #70, being a by-law to authorize the tax levy 
for 2023, be taken as read a first time. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item – 8.03 A 
 
Motion 224-22 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by: David Cornish  
THAT By-law #70, being a by-law to authorize the tax levy 
for 2023, be taken as read a second time. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item - 8.03 A 
Motion 225-22 
 
 
 
 

Moved by: Darrin Head 
Seconded by: Jennifer Kitowski  
THAT the rules of order be suspended to allow third and 
final reading of By-law #70. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

OCTOBER 11, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

Item 8.03 A –  
By-Law #70 
 
Motion 226-22 
 
 

Moved by:  Gerald Kleist  
Seconded by: Bob O’Donohue  
THAT By-law #70, being a by-law to authorize the tax levy for 
2023, be taken as read a third time and finally passed. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.04 A –  
25 Years of Service  
 
Motion 227-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: David Cornish  
Seconded by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
THAT the Employee Recognition Update, acknowledging 25 
years of service, be received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.04 B - #704 
Policy  
 
Motion 228-22 
 
 

Moved by: Barb Gauthier  
Seconded by: Darrin Head  
THAT Policy 705, Health and Safety, be received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.04 B - #704 
Policy  
 
Motion 229-22 
 
 

Moved by: Jennifer Kitowski  
Seconded by: Gerald Kleist  
THAT Policy 705, Health and Safety, be reaffirmed and 
reviewed annually. 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.04 C - #711 
Policy   
 
Motion 230-22 
 
 

Moved by: Bob O’Donohue  
Seconded by: David Cornish  
THAT Policy 711, Workplace Violence, be received. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.04 C - #711 
Policy   
 
Motion 231-22 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by:   Barb Gauthier  
THAT Policy 711, Workplace Violence, be reaffirmed and 
reviewed annually. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.05 A - #602 
Policy   
 
Motion 232-22 
 
 

Moved by:  Jennifer Kitowski 
Seconded by: Darrin Head  
THAT Policy 602, Travel, Meeting and Hospitality Expenses, 
be received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

OCTOBER 11, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

Item 8.05 A - #602 
Policy   
 
Motion 233-22 
 
 

Moved by: Bob O’Donohue 
Seconded by: Gerald Kleist  
THAT Policy 602, Travel, Meeting and Hospitality Expenses, 
be approved as amended with the next review date in year 
2026. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.06 B – Audit 
and Finance   
 
Motion 234-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Jennifer Kitowski  
Seconded by: David Cornish  
THAT the Audit and Finance Committee’s update be 
received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.06 F - SEAC 
 
Motion 235-22 
 
 
 
 

Moved by: Barb Gauthier  
Seconded by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
THAT the Special Education Advisory Committee verbal 
update be received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.06 F – SEAC 
appointment  
 
Motion 236-22 
 
 

Moved by: Darrin Head  
Seconded by: Jennifer Kitowski  
THAT the appointment of Stefanie Trent, representing the 
Kenora Association for Community Living in Kenora, to the 
Special Education Advisory Committee be approved. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.06 F – SEAC 
appointment - alternate 
 
Motion 237 -22 
 
 
 
 
 

Moved by: Jennifer Kitowski  
Seconded by: David Cornish  
THAT the appointment of Erica Murray, as the alternate 
representing the Kenora Association for Community Living 
in Kenora, to the Special Education Advisory Committee be 
approved. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 8.06 F – SEAC 
appointment  
 
Motion 238-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by: Bob O’Donohue  
THAT the appointment of Krissy Gerry, representing the 
Kenora District Services Board, to the Special Education 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

OCTOBER 11, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

Item 8.06 F – SEAC 
appointment - alternate 
 
Motion 239-22 
 
 
 
 

Moved by: Barb Gauthier  
Seconded by: Gerald Kleist  
THAT the appointment of Jennifer Peekhaus, as the alternate 
representing the Kenora District Services Board, to the 
Special Education Advisory Committee be approved. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Correspondence 
 

NONE 

New Business  Trustee D. Cornish asked if our schools could post on their 
websites and social media the dates of the Regular Board 
Meetings and Committee of the Whole Meetings.   
Director C. Radbourne commented on the request and will 
follow-up with Communications Administrator, S. Pilipishen.  
 
Trustee R. Griffiths thanked the Trustees who have chosen 
not to run again this election.   Their time and dedication to 
students over the years has been a tremendous asset.  On 
behalf of the Board, thank you to E. Bortlis, D. Head,  
J. Kitowski, C. Marcino and B. O’Donohue. 
 

Observer Comments Observers may participate by submitting questions 
regarding the agenda items presented at the meeting this 
evening, to the following email address 
‘questions@kpdsb.ca’.  Questions will be responded to 
under the agenda item, Observer Comments.  
 

Next Meeting Date Tuesday, November 15, 2022. 
 

Item 13 - Adjournment 
 
Motion 240-22 
 
 
 

Moved by: Bob O’Donohue  
Seconded by:   Darrin Head  
THAT the meeting adjourn at 8:10pm.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X  .       

 

 

____________________________________ 

Date                        Acting Chair, R. Griffiths  

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Date                          Christy Radbourne 

 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING #1 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING. 

 

The minutes of the Inaugural Board Meeting of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board 

Tuesday, November 15, 2022, held In-Person at Dryden High School, Dryden, Ontario.  

 
Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. 

 
Declaration of Office All Trustees took the Declaration of Office conducted by Christy 

Radbourne, Secretary to the Board.  The term of office is a four-year 
term, beginning November 15, 2022, ending November 14, 2026. 
 

Roll Call  
 
 
 
 
 

Denise Baxter Dave Cornish Marilyn Duncalfe  
Roger Griffiths Robert Kitowski Gerald Kleist  
Rory McMillan Dave Penney Steve Poling  
Gracie Tucker,  
Indigenous Student Trustee 
  

Dakota McDonald, 
Student Trustee 

Absent with Regret Nil   

Absent without Regret 
 

Nil   

Officials 
 
 

C. Radbourne R. Findlay S. Bailey 
J. Lower C. Moore S. Pilipishen  
Exec Assistant 
 

  

Also Present 
 

Media, Staff, and the Interested Public 

Item 4 - Agenda 
 
Motion 01-23 
 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe 
Seconded by: Rory McMillan  
THAT the agenda for the Inaugural Board Meeting of November 15, 
2022 be approved. 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Conflict of Interest None 
 

Item 6.0 – Scrutineers 
 
Motion 02-23 
 
 
 

Moved by: David Cornish  
Seconded by: Steven Poling  
THAT the Superintendent of Business, Richard Findlay, and the 
Superintendent of Education, Shannon Bailey, be designated as 
scrutineers, if required, in the selection process of the offices of Chair 
and Vice-Chair for the Keewatin Patricia District School Board.    
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X    
 

Item 7 – Nominations 
Chair 
 
Motion 3-23 
 

Moved by: David Cornish  
Seconded by:  David Penney  
THAT Roger Griffiths be nominated for the position of the Chair of 
the Board.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
INAUGURAL BOARD MEETING  

 November 15, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

Item 7 – Nominations 
closed 
 
Motion 4-23 
 

Moved by: M. Duncalfe  
Seconded by: R. McMillan 
THAT the nominations for the position of the Chair of the Board be 
closed.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X    
. 

Item 8 -Chair of the 
Board Remarks 

Roger Griffiths affirmed he would accept the position of Chair of 
the Board.  
 

Item 9 - Nominations 
Vice-Chair 
 
Motion 5-23 
 
 

Moved by: Gerald Kleist  
Seconded by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
THAT David Cornish be nominated for the position of the Vice-Chair 
of the Board.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Item 9- Nominations 
Closed 
 
Motion 6-23 
 
 

Moved by: Rory McMillan  
Seconded by: David Penney 
THAT the nominations for the position of the Vice-Chair of the Board 
be closed   

Defeated _____     Carried    X    
. 

Item 10 - Vice-Chair of 
the Board - Remarks 

David Cornish affirmed that he would accept the position of Vice-
Chair of the Board. 
 

Item12.01A – Students 
Come First  
 
Motion 7-23 
 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by:   Steven Poling  
THAT the Students Come First presentation be received.  
Lillian Berg Public School – Learning through Student-Led 
Activities  
Introductions: Principal Doris St. Jules  
Teacher: Beth Zurbrigg  
Presented by: 
Grade 8 students - Zach Robinson and Hunter Mireault 
Grade 7 student – Chase Pilipishen  

Defeated _____     Carried    X 
.       

Item 12.01B– OELC 
 
Motion 8-23 
 
 

Moved by:  Gerald Kleist  
Seconded by: Rory McMillan  
THAT the Ontario Education Leadership Camp Report be received 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
 

Item 12.02A – Student 
Trustee updates  
 
Motion 9-23 
 

Moved by:  Robert Kitowski  
Seconded by:  David Penney  
THAT the Student Trustee verbal reports be received. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
    
 
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
INAUGURAL BOARD MEETING  

 November 15, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

Item 12.02B – Trustee 
Membership 
Appointments to 
Committees  
 
Motion 10-23 
 

Moved by: David Cornish  
Seconded by:  Denise Baxter  
THAT the verbal report on the Trustee Appointments to Committees, 
for a one-year-term, be received. 
  

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

 Chair Griffiths informed the Board it is not a full complement yet 
therefore not all committees are filled with trustee positions.  
 

Item 12.02B – Executive 
Committee  
 
Motion 11-23 
 
 

Moved by: Rory McMillan  
Seconded by:  Gerald Kleist  
THAT Robert Kitowski h be appointed to the Executive Committee 
for the period of November 15, 2022, to April 14, 2023. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.02B – Trustee 
Code of Conduct 
Appointment 
 
Motion 12-23 
 
 

Moved by: Steve Poling  
Seconded by:  Marilyn Duncalfe  
THAT Dave Penney be appointed to the Trustee Code of Conduct 
Committee for a one (1) year term. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 

Item 12.02B – Audit 
Committee Appointments  
 
Motion 13-23 
 
 

Moved by: David Penney 
Seconded by: Gerald Kleist  
THAT David Cornish, Marilyn Duncalfe and Robert Kitowski  be 
appointed to the Audit and Finance Committees for a one (1) year 
term. 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.02B – IEAC 
Appointments 
 
Motion 14-23 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by: Robert Kitowski  
THAT Denise Baxter, Rory McMillan and Steve Poling appointed to 
the Indigenous Education Advisory Committee (IEAC) for a one (1) 
year term.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.02B – SEAC 
Appointments 
Motion 15-23 
 
 
 

Moved by: David Cornish  
Seconded by: Denise Baxter  
THAT Gerald Kleist be appointed to the Special Education Advisory 
Committee (SEAC) for a one (1) year term. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.02B – SEAC 
Alternate  
Motion 16-23 
 
 
 

Moved by: David Cornish  
Seconded by: Denise Baxter  
THAT Denise Baxter be appointed as the Alternate to the SEAC 
Committee for a one (1) year term, 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
INAUGURAL BOARD MEETING  

 November 15, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

Item 12.02B – EYAC 
Appointments 
 
Motion 17-23 
 
 

Moved by:  David Penney  
Seconded by: Gerald Kleist  
THAT Marilyn Duncalfe and Steve Poling be appointed to the Early 
Years Advisory Committee (EYAC) for a one (1) year term.   
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.02B - SAL 
Appointment 
 
Motion 18-23 
 
 
 
 

Moved by: Rory McMillan  
Seconded by: Robert Kitowski  
THAT Steve Poling be appointed to Supervised Alternative Learning 
(SAL) for a one (1) year term 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.02B – SAL 
Alternative Appointment 
 
Motion 19-23 
 
 
 

Moved by: Robert Kitowski 
Seconded by: Gerald Kleist  
THAT Rory McMillan be appointed as the Alternate to the 
Supervised Alternative Learning Committee for a one (1) year 
term.   

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Item 12.02B – 
Transportation Policy 
Committee Appointment 
 
Motion 20-23 
 
 

Moved by:  Denise Baxter 
Seconded by: David Cornish  
THAT Dave Penney be appointed to the Transportation Policy 
Committee for a one (1) year term 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.02B – OPSBA – 
Board of Directors 
Appointment 
 
Motion 21-23 
 

Moved by:  Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by: Steve Poling  
THAT Gerald Kleist be appointed to the Ontario Public School 
Boards’ Association (OPSBA) Board of Directors, for a one (1) year 
term. 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.02B - OPSBA 
Board of Directors 
Alternative Appointment 
 
Motion 22-23 
 

Moved by: Gerald Kleist  
Seconded by:   Rory McMillan  
THAT Robert Kitowski be appointed as an Alternate to the Ontario 
Public School Boards’ Association (OPSBA) Board of Directors, for a 
one (1) year term.    

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.02B - OPSBA 
Voting Delegate 
Appointment 
Motion 23-23 
 
 

Moved by:  Denise Baxter  
Seconded by: Robert Kitowski  
THAT Dave Cornish  be appointed as the Ontario Public School 
Boards’ Association (OPSBA) voting delegate for a one (1) year 
term. 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
INAUGURAL BOARD MEETING  

 November 15, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

Item 12.02C - OPSBA 
PES Travel – January 
2023 
 
Motion 24-23 
 
 

Moved by: Gerald Kleist  
Seconded by: David Penney  
THAT the verbal report on the Trustee Attendance at the Ontario 
Public School Boards’ Association (OPSBA) 2023 Public Education 
Symposium, be received 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item12.02C - OPSBA 
PES Travel – January 
2023 
 
Motion 25-23 
 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by: David Cornish  
THAT accommodations and travel arrangements for trustees who 
wish to attend the OPSBA Public Education Symposium being held 
in Toronto January 26-28, 2023, be approved. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.06A– EYAC 
update  
 
Motion 26-23 
 
 

Moved by: Rory McMillan  
Seconded by:  Robert Kitowski  
THAT the Early Years Advisory Committee update be received. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Item 12.06C- IEAC 
update  
 
Motion 27-23 
 
 

Moved by: David Cornish  
Seconded by: David Penney  
THAT the Indigenous Education Advisory Committee (IEAC) verbal 
update be received. 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.06D- OSPBA 
update  
 
Motion 28-23 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by: Rory McMillan  
THAT the Ontario Public School Boards’ Association (OPSBA) 
verbal update be received. 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.06E – PIC 
update  
 
Motion 29-23 
 
 

Moved by: David Penney  
Seconded by: Denise Baxter  
THAT the Parent Involvement Committee update be received.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Item 12.06F – SEAC 
update  
 
Motion 30-23 
 
 

Moved by:  Marilyn Duncalfe 
Seconded by: Steve Poling  
THAT the Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC) verbal 
update be received. 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   . 
       

Correspondence 
 

NONE 

New Business  NONE  
 
 
 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
INAUGURAL BOARD MEETING  

 November 15, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

Observer Comments Observers may participate by submitting questions, regarding 
the agenda items presented at the meeting this evening, to the 
following email address: questions@kpdsb.ca 
Questions will be responded to under this agenda item, Observer 
Comments. 
 

Next Meeting Date 
 

Tuesday, December 13, 2022 
 

Item 17.0– Adjournment  
 
Motion 31-23 
 
 
 

Moved by: Denise Baxter 
Seconded by:   Marilyn Duncalfe  
THAT the meeting adjourn at 8:17pm. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X  .       

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

         Date                                     Chair, R. Griffiths  

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

         Date                             Christy Radbourne 

 



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING #4 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING. 

 

The minutes of the SPECIAL Board Meeting of the Keewatin-Patricia District School 

Board Tuesday, November 29, 2022, held via virtual meeting.  

 

Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 6:41pm. 
 

Roll Call  
 
 
 

Denise Baxter Dave Cornish Marilyn Duncalfe  
Roger Griffiths Robert Kitowski Steve Poling 
Rory McMillan Dave Penney  
  

Absent with Regret 
 

Gerald Kleist   

Officials 
 
 

C. Radbourne R. Findlay S. Bailey 
C. Moore  S. Pilipishen  
Exec Assistant 
 

  

Also Present 
 

Media, Staff, and the Interested Public 

Item 3 – Agenda 
Amended 
 
Motion 32-23 
 
 
 

Moved by:  Steven Poling  
Seconded by:   David Penney  
THAT the agenda for the Special Board Meeting of November 
29, 2022, be approved as amended to remove agenda item #7, 
Draft 2021-2022 Financial Statements. 
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       
 

Conflict of Interest Declaration of conflict of interest regarding proceedings on 
agenda - NONE 
 

Item 5 – Trustee 
Appointment  
Motion 33-23 
 
 
 

Moved by: Rory McMillan  
Seconded by: Robert Kitowski  
THAT the Trustee Appointment verbal report be received.  

 
Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Item 5 – Trustee 
Appointment  
 
Motion 34-23 
 
 
 
 

Moved by: Marilyn Duncalfe  
Seconded by: David Cornish  
THAT Norine Van Breda be appointed as the Trustee for the 
jurisdiction of Pickle Lake, Savant Lake and Upsala and take the 
Declaration of Office at the December 13, 2022, Regular Board 
Meeting.  

 
Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Item 6 – SOE 
Appointment  

Moved by: Denise Baxter 
Seconded by: Robert Kitowski  



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING  

November 29, 2022 

THE KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD PUTS STUDENTS FIRST BY CREATING A CULTURE OF LEARNING.  

 

 
Motion 35-23 
 
 
 

THAT the verbal report on the Superintendent of Education 
position be received.   

 
Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Item 6 – SOE 
Appointment  
 
Motion 36-23 
 
 
 

Moved by: Rory McMillan  
Seconded by: David Penney  
THAT Shawnda Norlock be appointed as the Superintendent of 

Education, Student Achievement, and Equity position with a 

start date to be determined.  

 
Defeated _____     Carried    X   .       

Item 7 – Adjournment  
 
Motion 37-23 
 
 
 

Moved by:  Rory McMillan  
Seconded by: Steven Poling  
THAT the meeting adjourn at 6:48pm.  
 

Defeated _____     Carried    X  .       

 

  ____________________________________ 

Date                                    Chair, R. Griffiths  

 

____________________________________ 

   Date                        Secretary, C. Radbourne   



 

 

Regular Board Meeting 
 

December 13, 2022 
 

Respectfully submitted by: 
Richard Findlay, Superintendent of Business  

Natalie Pearson, Finance Manager 
 

Management’s Report on the 2021-22 Audited Financial Statements 
(in thousands of dollars) 

 
The 2021-22 fiscal year resulted in a $4,353 PSAB Surplus, increasing our Accumulated Surplus 
(also known as Reserves) to $39,725 as of August 31, 2022.  While revenues were $8.4 million 
higher than budgeted, expenses were also up by $3.5 million compared to estimates. 
 
 
OPERATING RESULTS 
 
A variance report on operating revenues and expenses compared to budget is attached as 
Appendix 1. Highlights and explanations for some of the more significant revenue and expense 
variances follow. Note that the terms Estimates and Budget will be used interchangeably. 
 
REVENUES - $108,916 
 
Provincial Grants under the “Grants for Student Needs” or “GSN” funding model were $75,580.  
This was $1.5 million (2%) higher than the estimates. Much of this increase was due to an 
increase in student enrolment compared to projections. 

Provincial Grants – Other at $8,757 was $5.7 million more than the estimates. The estimates 
contain only known grants at the time the estimates are approved. Additional grants - known as 
Priority and Partnership Fund (PPF) grants - are funds received during the year to address specific 
provincial initiatives such as student mental health needs.  We typically are very conservative in 
our estimates of PPF grants because they are not guaranteed revenue on a year-to-year basis 
due to their specific focus on certain initiatives. In 21-22, PPF grants were $2.4 million more than 
estimated. In-kind grants from the provincial government for Covid-related PPE and Rapid 
Antigen Test Kits totaled $3.4 million and were not included in the estimates. 

Education Property Tax revenues of $13,625 were $511 lower than the estimates. Fortunately, 
our overall funding is not affected by declines in education property tax because provincial grants 
are increased correspondingly to ensure we receive a total funding allocation that is based on 
enrolments and the provincial education funding model. 

School Generated Funds revenues of $1,183 were $380 lower than the estimates, mainly 
because schools did not run regular events due to ongoing COVID protocols and restrictions. 

Federal Grants and Fees of $7,752 were $1,581 higher than the estimates mainly due to higher 
than budgeted student enrolment for Other Pupils of the Board (tuition-paying pupils). Our 
budgeted enrolment was very conservative because we were concerned about the number of 
students from northern communities not returning to school due to Covid. We also had Jordan’s 
Principle Education Assistant support funding of $350 that was not budgeted. 

Other Fees & Revenues of $1,781 were $452 thousand (34%) more than budgeted due to 
initiatives that were funded in the year that were not known at budget preparation time. This 
includes revenue received from the Northern Support Initiative ($200), Summer Literacy ($90), 
and Project Sunset ($160). 
  



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Management’s Report on the 2021-22 Audited Financial Statements 

December 13, 2022 
Page 2 

 

 
Respectfully submitted by: 

Richard Findlay, Superintendent of Business 
Natalie Pearson, Finance Manager 

 

EXPENSES - $104,563 
 
Instruction expenses of $69,227 were $1.9 million (2.6%) lower than the estimates. This variance 
includes a decrease in amortization that was caused by the correction of Sioux North High School 
amortization being included in Instruction rather than Pupil Accommodation in 2020-21. This 
variance is also explained by lower staffing costs because of positions that were budgeted but 
unfilled during the school year. Supply staff salaries were also lower than budgeted because there 
was less sick leave utilized than estimated and there were less replacement staff available. 
Finally, even when classroom positions were being filled, they were being filled by teachers who 
were on the low end of the salary grid. 

Administration expenses of $5,629 were $502 (9.8%) more than the estimates.  The variance is 
made up of expenditures that were higher than budget, including: vacation payouts ($50), HR 
staffing additions ($118), and amortization ($265). 

Transportation expenses of $6,176 were $406 (7%) higher than the estimates due to the addition 
of more bus routes than were not anticipated at budget time. 

Pupil Accommodation expenses of $17,953 were $1.6 million (9.9%) over the estimates. Some 
of this variance includes an increase in amortization ($1,267), some of which was caused by the 
correction of Sioux North High School amortization being included in Instruction rather than Pupil 
Accommodation in 2020-21. Other variances were caused by higher than anticipated 
maintenance and utility costs in schools ($266). 

School Generated Funds expenses of $1,163 were $400 (25.6%) below estimates.  This 
variance aligns with the fact that schools were not running events as they would in normal times 
due to Covid. 

Other expenses of $4,415 were $3.2 million (267%) more than the estimates. In-kind grants from 
the provincial government for Covid-related PPE and Rapid Antigen Test Kits totaled $3.4 million 
and were not included in the estimates. 
 
COMPLIANCE 
 
Surplus / Deficit 

The 2021-22 surplus for Ministry of Education compliance purposes is $4,950. The Board was 
compliant with the “Balanced Budget Determination” requirement (i.e. deficit less than 1% of 
operating budget, or $813 deficit). Note that this is different from the “PSAB” surplus value of 
$4,353 referenced at the beginning of this report. 

Administration and Governance 

The net expenses of $3,521 were within the funding allocation of $3,521. Therefore, the Board 
was compliant with this enveloping requirement. 

  



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 
Management’s Report on the 2021-22 Audited Financial Statements 

December 13, 2022 
Page 3 

 

 
Respectfully submitted by: 

Richard Findlay, Superintendent of Business 
Natalie Pearson, Finance Manager 

 

 
APPENDIX 1 
 
Keewatin-Patricia DSB 
2021-22 Financial Statements 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 
For the year ended August 31 
Variance Report (in thousands of dollars) 
 
 

 

2021‐22 2021‐22

2021‐22 2021‐22 2020‐21 Act v Est Act v Est

Actual Estimates Actual Variance $ Variance %

REVENUES

Provincial Grants for Student Needs 75,580            74,065            74,114            1,515               2.0%

Provincial Grants ‐ Other 8,757               3,099               5,876               5,658               182.6%

Local Taxation  13,625            14,136            14,055            (511)                 ‐3.6%

School Generated Funds 1,183               1,563               565                  (380)                 ‐24.3%

Federal Grants & Fees 7,752               6,171               6,476               1,581               25.6%

Investment Income 11                     ‐                        9                       11                    

Other Revenue ‐ School Boards 227                  130                  13                     97                    

Other Fees & Revenues 1,781               1,329               1,728               452                  34.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 108,916          100,493          102,836          8,423               8.4%

EXPENSES

Instruction 69,227            71,093            69,364            (1,866)             ‐2.6%

Administration 5,629               5,127               5,281               502                  9.8%

Transportation 6,176               5,770               4,748               406                  7.0%

Pupil Acommodation 17,953            16,333            16,642            1,620               9.9%

School Generated Funds 1,163               1,563               694                  (400)                 ‐25.6%

Other Expenses 4,415               1,204               1,754               3,211               266.7%

TOTAL EXPENSES 104,563          101,090          98,483            3,473               3.4%

Annual Surplus 4,353               (597)                 4,353               4,950               ‐829.1%

Accumulated Surplus at beginning of year 35,372            28,610            31,019           

Acumulated Surplus at end of year 39,725            28,013            35,372           



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DRAFT 
 

FINANCIAL 

 

STATEMENTS 

 

2021 - 2022 



WWW.KPDSB.ON.CA
All stakeholders create a culture of learning so that students come first.

Kenora - Head Office     Dryden Office
4th Floor – 240 Veterans Dr     79 Casimir Ave
Kenora, Ontario P9N 3Y5      Dryden, Ontario P8N 2Z6
Phone: (807) 468-5571      Phone: (807) 223-5311
Fax: (807) 468-3857      Fax: (807) 223-4703
Toll Free: 1-877-275-7771 Toll Free: 1-877-287-5430

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Keewatin-Patricia District School Board
are the responsibility of the Board’s management and have been prepared in accordance with
the Financial Administration Act, supplemented by Ontario Ministry of Education memorandum
2004:B2 and Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act, as described in Note
1 to the consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates
based on management’s judgement, particularly when transactions affecting the current
accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future periods.

The Board’s management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and recorded in
compliance with legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial information is
available on a timely basis for preparation of the consolidated financial statements. These
systems are monitored and evaluated by management.

The Audit Committee of the Board meets with the external auditors to review the consolidated
financial statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior
to their approval of the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by BDO Canada LLP, independent
external auditors appointed by the Board. The accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report
outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their examination and their opinion on the Board’s
consolidated financial statements.

__________________ ____________________
Christy Radbourne Richard Findlay
Director of Education Chief Financial Officer

December 13, 2022DRAFT



2

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees of Keewatin-Patricia District School Board

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Keewatin-Patricia District School Board and its
controlled entities (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
August 31, 2022, the consolidated statements of operations, cash flows and changes in net debt for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the
year ended August 31, 2022 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of
accounting described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

In common with many school boards, the Group derives revenues from school fundraising activities, the
completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, verification of
these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the Group. Therefore, we were
not able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to school generated funds revenues,
annual surplus, and cash flows from operations for the years ended August 31, 2022 and 2021, financial
assets as at August 31, 2022 and 2021, and accumulated surplus as at September 1 and August 31 for both
the 2022 and 2021 years. Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
August 31, 2021 was modified accordingly because of the possible effects of this limitation in scope.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements which describes the basis of
accounting used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements and the significant
differences between such basis of accounting and Canadian public sector accounting standards. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management’s Report on the 2021-2022 Audited Financial Statements.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
DRAFT



3

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We obtained the Management’s Report on the 2021-2022 Audited Financial Statements prior to the date
of this auditor’s report. If, based on the work we have performed on this other information, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact in
this auditor’s report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the basis of accounting described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

DRAFT



4

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Kenora, Ontario
December 13, 2022

DRAFT



August 31, 2022        Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands of dollars)

Page 5
The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at August 31

2022 2021

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 2,515 2,059

Accounts receivable (Note 2) 45,806 47,083

Other 491 116

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 48,812 49,258

LIABILITIES

Temporary borrowing (Note 7) 225 219

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6,889 9,592

Long term debt (Note 6) 16,923 19,423

Deferred revenue (Note 3) 4,781 4,053

Employee benefits payable (Note 5) 2,400 3,099

Deferred capital contributions (Note 4) 115,243 114,917

TOTAL LIABILITIES 146,461 151,303

NET DEBT (97,649) (102,045)

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Prepaid expenses 204 347

Tangible capital assets (Note 12) 137,170 137,070

TOTAL NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 137,374 137,417

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (Note 13) 39,725 35,372

Signed On Behalf Of The Board On December 13, 2022

_________________________________

Signature of Chief Executive Officer Signature of Chair of the BoardDRAFT



August 31, 2022        Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands of dollars)

Page 6
The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Operations

For the year ended August 31

2022
Budget

2022
Actual

2021
Actual

REVENUES

Provincial grants - Grants for Student Needs 74,065 75,580 74,114

Provincial grants - Other 3,099 8,757 5,876

Education Property Tax 14,136 13,625 14,055

School generated funds 1,563 1,183 565

Federal grants and fees 6,171 7,752 6,476

Investment income 0 11 9

Other revenues - school boards 130 227 13

Other fees and revenues 1,329 1,781 1,728

TOTAL REVENUE 100,493 108,916 102,836

EXPENSES

Instruction 71,093 69,227 69,364

Administration 5,127 5,629 5,281

Transportation 5,770 6,176 4,748

Pupil accommodation 16,333 17,953 16,642

School generated funds 1,563 1,163 694

Other 1,204 4,415 1,754

TOTAL EXPENSES 101,090 104,563 98,483

Annual Surplus (Deficit) (597) 4,353 4,353

Accumulated Surplus at beginning of year 28,610 35,372 31,019

Accumulated Surplus at end of year 28,013 39,725 35,372DRAFT



August 31, 2022        Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands of dollars)

Page 7
The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended August 31

2022 2021

OPERATING TRANSACTIONS

Annual Surplus 4,353 4,353

Items not involving cash

Amortization of tangible capital assets 7,966 7,587

Deferred capital contributions revenue (7,285) (6,364)

Net gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (25) 0

Change in non-cash assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable (1,238) 5,786

Accounts receivable - Delayed Grant Payment (4,310) (5,161)

Other financial assets (375) (50)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,703) (2,077)

Deferred revenue (451) 1,322

Employee future benefits payable (699) (372)

Prepaid expenses 142 (99)

(4,625) 4,925

CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 596 0

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (8,636) (17,106)

Cash provided by (applied to) capital transactions (8,040) (17,106)

FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Temporary borrowing 6 97

Debt repaid (2,500) (2,418)

Accounts receivable - Government of Ontario - Approved Capital 6,825 (3,965)

Net deferred capital contributions 7,611 16,651

Deferred revenues - capital 1,179 304

Cash provided by (applied to) financing transactions 13,121 10,669

Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 456 (1,512)

Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,059 3,571

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,515 2,059DRAFT



August 31, 2022        Consolidated Financial Statements
(in thousands of dollars)

Page 8
The accompanying summary of significant accounting policies and notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Change in Net Debt

For the year ended August 31

2022 2021

Annual Surplus 4,353 4,353

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (8,636) (17,106)

Amortization of tangible capital assets 7,966 7,586

Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets 596 0

Net loss on disposal of tangible capital assets (25) 0

Total tangible capital asset activity (99) (9,520)

OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSET ACTIVITY

Acquisition of prepaid expenses (196) (338)

Use of prepaid expenses 338 240

Total other non-financial asset activity 142 (98)

(Increase) decrease in net debt 4,396 (5,265)

Net debt at beginning of year (102,045) (96,780)

Net debt at end of year (97,649) (102,045)

DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 9

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with
the basis of accounting described below.

All amounts referenced in these notes and financial statements are in thousands (000’s)
of Canadian dollars unless otherwise noted.

a) Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
Financial Administration Act supplemented by Ontario Ministry of Education memorandum
2004:B2 and Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration Act.

The Financial Administration Act requires that the consolidated financial statements be
prepared in accordance with the accounting principles determined by the relevant Ministry
of the Province of Ontario.  A directive was provided by the Ontario Ministry of Education
within memorandum 2004:B2 requiring school boards to adopt Canadian public sector
accounting standards commencing with their year ended August 31, 2004 and that
changes may be required to the application of these standards as a result of regulation.

In 2011, the government passed Ontario Regulation 395/11 of the Financial Administration
Act.  The Regulation requires that contributions received or receivable for the acquisition
or development of depreciable tangible capital assets and contributions of depreciable
tangible capital assets for use in providing services, be recorded as deferred capital
contributions and be recognized as revenue in the statement of operations over the
periods during which the asset is used to provide service at the same rate that amortization
is recognized in respect of the related asset.  The regulation further requires that if the net
book value of the depreciable tangible capital asset is reduced for any reason other than
depreciation, a proportionate reduction of the deferred capital contribution along with a
proportionate increase in the revenue be recognized.  For Ontario school boards, these
contributions include government transfers, externally restricted contributions and,
historically, property tax revenue.

The accounting policy requirements under Regulation 395/11 are significantly different
from the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards which require that

 government transfers, which do not contain a stipulation that creates a liability, be
recognized as revenue by the recipient when approved by the transferor and the
eligibility criteria have been met in accordance with public sector accounting
standard PS3410;

 externally restricted contributions be recognized as revenue in the period in which
the resources are used for the purpose or purposes specified in accordance with
public sector accounting standard PS3100; andDRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 10

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

 property taxation revenue be reported as revenue when received or receivable in
accordance with public sector accounting standard PS3510.

As a result, revenue recognized in the statement of operations and certain related deferred
revenues and deferred capital contributions would be recorded differently under Canadian
public sector accounting standards.

b) Reporting Entity

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses of the reporting entity.  The reporting entity is comprised of all organizations
accountable for the administration of their financial affairs and resources to the Board and
which are controlled by the Board.

School generated funds, which include the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of
various organizations that exist at the school level and which are controlled by the Board
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Northwestern Ontario Student Services Consortium is accounted for on a proportional
consolidated basis, whereby each participating board reports its pro-rata share of the
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the consortium that are subject to shared
control, combined on a line-by-line basis with similar line items.

Consolidated entities –
Northwestern Ontario Student Services Consortium
School Generated Funds

Interdepartmental and inter-organizational transactions and balances between these
organizations are eliminated.

c) Trust Funds

Trust funds and their related operations administered by the Board are not included in the
consolidated financial statements as they are not controlled by the Board.

d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments. Short-term investments are highly liquid, subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value and have a short maturity term of less than 90 days.

e) Deferred Revenue

Certain amounts are received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement and may
only be used in the conduct of certain programs or in the delivery of specific services and
DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 11

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

transactions. These amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year the related
expenditures are incurred or services performed.

f) Deferred Capital Contributions

Contributions received or receivable for the purpose of acquiring or developing a
depreciable tangible capital asset for use in providing services, or any contributions in the
form of depreciable tangible assets received or receivable for use in providing services,
shall be recognized as deferred capital contribution as defined in Ontario Regulation
395/11 of the Financial Administration Act. These amounts are recognized as revenue at
the same rate as the related tangible capital asset is amortized. The following items fall
under this category:

 Government transfers received or receivable for capital purpose

 Other restricted contributions received or receivable for capital purpose

 Property taxation revenues which were historically used to fund capital assets

g) Retirement and Other Employee Future Benefits

The Board provides defined retirement and other future benefits to specified employee
groups. These benefits include pension, life insurance, and health care benefits, dental
benefits, retirement gratuity, worker’s compensation and long-term disability benefits.

As part of ratified labour collective agreements for unionized employees that bargain
centrally and ratified central discussions with the Principals and Vice-Principals
Association the following Employee Life and Health Trusts (ELHTs) were established in
2016-17: ETFO, OSSTF, CUPE and a trust for non-unionized employees including
principals and vice-principals. The following ELHTs were established in 2017-2018: CUPE
and a trust for non-unionized employees including principals and vice-principals. The
ELHTs provide health, life and dental benefits to the member employees.

These benefits are provided through a joint governance structure between the
bargaining/employee groups, school board trustees’ associations and the Government of
Ontario. Boards no longer administer health, life and dental plans for their employees and
instead are required to fund the ELHTs on a monthly basis based on a negotiated amount
per full-time equivalency (FTE). Funding for the ELHTs is based on the existing benefits
funding embedded within the Grants for Student Needs (GSN), including additional
ministry funding in the form of a Crown Contribution and Stabilization Adjustment.

Depending on prior arrangements and employee groups, the Board continues to provide
health, dental and life insurance benefits for some retired individuals.

The Board has adopted the following policies with respect to accounting for these
employee benefits:

(i) The costs of self-insured retirement and other employee future benefit plans are
DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 12

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

actuarially determined using management’s best estimate of salary escalation,
accumulated sick days at retirement, insurance and health care costs trends,
disability recovery rates, long-term inflation rates and discount rates. The cost of
retirement gratuities is actuarially determined using the employee’s salary, banked
sick days and years of service as at August 31, 2012 and management’s best
estimate of discount rates. Any actuarial gains and losses arising from changes to
the discount rate are amortized over the expected average remaining service life
of the employee group.

For self-insured retirement and other employee future benefits that vest or
accumulated over the periods of service provided by employees, such as life
insurance and health care benefits for retirees, the cost is actuarially determined
using the projected benefits method prorated on service. Under this method, the
benefit costs are recognized over the expected average service life of the
employee group.

For those self-insured benefit obligations that arise from specific events that occur
from time to time, such as obligations for worker’s compensation and long-term
disability, the cost is recognized immediately in the period the events occur. Any
actuarial gains and losses that are related to these benefits are recognized
immediately in the period they arise.

(ii) The costs of multi-employer defined pension plan benefits, such as the Ontario
Municipal Employees Retirement System pensions, are the employer’s
contributions due to the plan in the period.

(iii) The costs of insured benefits are the employer’s portion of insurance premiums
owed for coverage of employees during the period.

h) Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at historical cost less accumulated amortization.

Historical cost includes amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction,

development or betterment of the asset, as well as interest related to financing during

construction. When historical cost records were not available, other methods were used

to estimate the costs and accumulated amortization.

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership of

property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are

accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as

incurred.DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 13

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Tangible capital assets, except land, are amortized on a straight line basis over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset                                                                      Estimated Useful Life in Years

Land improvements with finite lives 15
Buildings and building improvements 40
Portable structures 20
Other buildings 20
First–time equipping of schools 10
Furniture 10
Equipment 5-15
Computer hardware 3
Computer software 5
Vehicles 5-10
Leasehold improvements                                                         Over the lease term

Assets under construction and assets that relate to pre-acquisition and pre-construction
costs are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use.

Land permanently removed from service and held for resale is recorded at the lower of
cost and estimated net realizable value.  Cost includes amounts for improvements to
prepare the land for sale or servicing. Buildings permanently removed from service and
held for resale cease to be amortized and are recorded at the lower of carrying value and
estimated net realizable value.  Tangible capital assets which meet the criteria for financial
assets are reclassified as “assets held for sale” on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Works of art and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as assets in these
consolidated financial statements.

i) Government Transfers

Government transfers, which include legislative grants, are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements in the period in which events giving rise to the transfer occur,
providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been met and
reasonable estimates of the amount can be made. If government transfers contain
stipulations which give rise to a liability, they are deferred and recognized in revenue when
the stipulations are met.

Government transfers for capital are deferred as required by Regulation 395/11, recorded
as deferred capital contributions (DCC) and recognized as revenue in the consolidated
statement of operations at the same rate and over the same period as the asset is
amortized.
DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 14

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

j) Investment Income

Investment income is reported as revenue in the period earned.

When required by the funding government or related Act, investment income earned on
externally restricted funds such as pupil accommodation, education development charges
and special education forms part of the respective deferred revenue balances.

k) Budget Figures

Budget figures have been provided for comparison purposes and have been derived from
the budget approved by the Trustees.  The budget approved by the Trustees is developed
in accordance with the provincially mandated funding model for school boards and is used
to manage program spending within the guidelines of the funding model.

l) Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with the basis of
accounting described in note 1a requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year.  Accounts subject to
significant estimates include allowances for doubtful accounts receivable, useful lives of
tangible capital assets and liabilities for retirement and other employee future benefits.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

m) Education Property Tax Revenue

Under Public Sector Accounting Standards, the entity that determines and sets the tax
levy records the revenue in the financial statements, which in the case of the Board, is the
Province of Ontario.

DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 15

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

2. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - GOVERNMENT OF ONTARIO

The Province of Ontario (Province) replaced variable capital funding with a one-time debt
support grant in 2009-10.  The Board received a one-time grant that recognized capital
debt as of August 31, 2010 that is supported by the existing capital programs.  The Board
receives this grant in cash over the remaining term of the existing capital debt instruments.
The Board may also receive yearly capital grants to support capital programs which would
be reflected in this account receivable.

The Board has an account receivable from the Province of Ontario of $17,067 as at August
31, 2022 (2021 - $23,892) with respect to capital grants.

The Ministry of Education introduced a cash management strategy effective September 1,
2018.  As part of the strategy, the Ministry delays part of the grant payment to school
boards where the adjusted accumulated surplus and deferred revenue balances are in
excess of certain criteria set out by the Ministry. The balance of delayed grant payments
included in the receivable balance from the Government of Ontario at August 31, 2022 is
$19,437 (2021 - $15,127).

DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 16

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

3. DEFERRED REVENUE

Revenues received and that have been set aside for specific purposes by legislation,
regulation or agreement are included in deferred revenue and reported on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Deferred revenue set-aside for specific purposes by legislation, regulation or agreement
as at August 31, 2022 is comprised of:

Balance
as at

August
31, 2021

Externally
restricted
revenue

and
investment

income

Transfers to
deferred
capital

contributions

Transfers
to

revenue

Balance
as at

August
31, 2022

Proceeds of Disposition 258 596 0 0 854

Minor Tangible Capital
Assets

0 2,031 896 1,135 0

School Renewal 1,847 1,980 0 1,379 2,448

Temporary Accommodation 390 0 0 0 390

Other - Capital 18 471 0 489 0

Other - Operating 1,540 16,215 0 16,666 1,089

Total Deferred Revenue 4,053 21,293 896 19,669 4,781

4. DEFERRED CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Deferred capital contributions include grants and contributions received that are used for
the acquisition of tangible capital assets in accordance with regulation 395/11 that have
been expended by year end.  The contributions are amortized into revenue over the life of
the asset acquired.

2022 2021

Balance, beginning of year 114,917 104,630

Additions to deferred capital contributions 7,611 16,651

Revenue recognized in the period (6,714) (6,364)

Transfer to deferred revenue (proceeds of disposition) (571) 0

Balance, end of year 115,243 114,917DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 17

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

5. RETIREMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS
Retirement and Other Employee Future Benefit
Liabilities

2022 2021

Retirement
Benefits

Other
Employee

Future
Benefits

Total
Employee

Future
Benefits

Total
Employee

Future
Benefits

Accrued Employee Future Benefit Obligations (ABO)
at August 31

1,916 538 2,454 3,349

Unamortized Actuarial Gains (Losses) at August 31 (54) 0 (54) (250)

Employee Future Benefits Liability at August 31 1,862 538 2,400 3,099

Retirement and Other Employee Future Benefit
Expenses

2022 2021

Retirement
Benefits

Other
Employee

Future
Benefits

Total
Employee

Future
Benefits

Total
Employee

Future
Benefits

Amortized (Gain) Loss 84 (17) 67 109

Current Year Benefit Cost 0 8 8 149

Interest Accrued 42 11 53 49

Employee Future Benefits Expenses1 126 2 128 307

1 Excluding pension contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System,
a multi-employer pension plan, described below.

DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 18

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

Actuarial Assumptions

The accrued benefit obligations for employee future benefit plans as at August 31, 2022
are based on the most recent actuarial valuations completed for accounting purposes as
at August 31, 2012 for frozen retirement gratuities and grandfathered subsidized post-
retirement benefits and as at August 31, 2022 for sick leave carry-over benefits (date
actuarial probabilities were determined) and based on updated average daily salary and
banked sick days as at August 31, 2022. These valuations take into account the plan
changes outlined above and the economic assumptions used in these valuations are the
Board’s best estimates of expected rates of:

2022 2021

% %

Inflation 2.00 1.50

Wage and salary escalation 2.00 1.80

WSIB discount rate 3.90 1.80

Insurance, health and dental care cost escalation 3.0-6.75 4.5-7.0

Discount on accrued benefit obligations 3.90 1.80

Retirement Benefits

(i) Ontario Teacher’s Pension Plan

Teachers and related employee groups are eligible to be members of Ontario Teacher’s
Pension Plan. Employer contributions for these employees are provided directly by the
Province of Ontario.  The pension costs and obligations related to this plan are a direct
responsibility of the Province. Accordingly, no costs or liabilities related to this plan are
included in the Board’s consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System

All non-teaching employees of the Board are eligible to be members of the Ontario
Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS), a multi-employer pension plan. The
plan provides defined pension benefits to employees based on their length of service and
rates of pay. The Board contributions equal the employee contributions to the plan. During
the year ended August 31, 2022, the Board contributed $1,501 (2021 - $1,500) to the plan.
As this is a multi-employer pension plan, these contributions are the Board’s pension
benefit expenses. No pension liability for this type of plan is included in the Board’s
consolidated financial statements.

The OMERS pension plan has approximately 525,000 members and approximately 1,000
employers. At December 31, 2021, the estimated accrued pension obligation for all
members (including survivors) of the Plan was $119,342 million (2020 - $111,820 million).
The resulting funding surplus (deficit) was $(69) million at December 31, 2021 (2020 –

DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 19

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

($7,655) million deficit). The actuary does not attribute portions of the unfunded liability to
individual employers. The Board contributions equal the employee contributions to the
plan.

(iii) Retirement Gratuities

The Board provides retirement gratuities to certain groups of employees hired prior to
specified dates. The Board provides these benefits through an unfunded defined benefit
plan. The benefit costs and liabilities related to this plan are included in the Board’s
consolidated financial statements.  The amount of gratuities payable to eligible employees
at retirement is based on their salary, accumulated sick days, and years of service up to
August 31, 2012.

(iv) Retirement Life Insurance and Health Care Benefits

The Board provides life insurance, dental and health care benefits to a certain employee

group after retirement until the members reach 65 years of age. The Board provides these

benefits through an unfunded defined benefit plan. The benefit costs and liabilities related

to this plan are included in the Board’s consolidated financial statements. Effective

September 1, 2013, employees retiring on or after this date, do not qualify for board

subsidized premiums or contributions.

Other Employee Future Benefits

(i) Workplace Safety and Insurance Board Obligations

The Board is a Schedule 2 employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act and,
as such, assumes responsibility for the payment of all claims to its injured workers under
the Act. The Board does not fund these obligations in advance of payments made under
the Act. The benefit costs and liabilities related to this plan are included in the Board’s
consolidated financial statements.  School boards are required to provide salary top-up to
a maximum of 4 ½ years for employees receiving payments from the Workplace Safety
and Insurance Board, where the collective agreement negotiated prior to 2012 included
such provision.

(ii) Long-Term Disability

The costs of salary compensation paid to employees on long-term disability leave are fully
insured and not included in this plan.

(iii) Sick Leave Top-Up Benefits

A maximum of eleven unused sick leave days from the current year may be carried forward
into the following year only, to be used to top-up salary for illnesses paid through the short-DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 20

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

term leave and disability plan in that year. The benefit costs expensed in 2022 are $70
(2021 - $80).

For accounting purposes, the valuation of the accrued benefit obligation for the sick leave
top-up is based on actuarial assumptions about future events determined as at August 31,
2022 (the date at which the probabilities of usage were determined) and is based on the
average daily salary and banked sick days of employees as at August 31, 2022.

6. LONG TERM DEBT

Debenture debt and capital loans reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position comprises of the following:

Capital Loans Maturity Date Rate 2022 2021

TD Canada Trust

Loan #7 - monthly payments of $146 6/30/2023 3.000% 1,442 3,122

Ontario Financing Authority (a related party)

Loan #1 - semi-annual payment of $142 11/17/2031 4.560% 2,163 2,341

Loan #2 - semi-annual payments of $64 3/3/2033 4.900% 1,055 1,128

Loan #3 - semi-annual payments of $37 3/13/2034 5.062% 646 685

Loan #4 - semi-annual payments of $30 3/9/2037 3.564% 692 727

Loan #5 - semi-annual payments of $462 3/19/2038 3.799% 10,925 11,420

Balance as at August 31 16,923 19,423

Principal and interest payments relating to net debenture debt and capital loans
outstanding as at August 31, 2022 are due as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2023 2,296 634 2,930

2024 890 578 1,468

2025 926 541 1,467

2026 965 501 1,466

2027 1,005 461 1,466

Thereafter 10,841 2,317 13,158

Total 16,923 5,032 21,955DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 21

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

7. TEMPORARY BORROWING

The Board has an operating line of credit with a Canadian financial institution. The
maximum drawing is $12 million to address operating requirements. Interest is payable on
the operating line at prime less 0.75% on loans and 0.25% on bankers’ acceptances. At
year end, nothing was drawn on the operating line. The Board also has a capital line of
credit with a Canadian financial institution.  The maximum drawing is $15 million to
address capital purchase requirements prior to receiving funding from the Ministry of
Education.  Interest is payable on the capital line of credit at prime less 0.75% on loans
and 0.25% on bankers’ acceptances.  At year end, nothing was drawn on the capital line.
The Board has temporary borrowing of $225 (2021 - $219) for credit cards as at August
31, 2022.

8. DEBT CHARGES AND CAPITAL LOANS INTEREST

2022 2021

Principal payments on long-term
liabilities

2,500 2,418

Interest payments on long-term
liabilities

716 596

3,216 3,014

9. GRANTS FOR STUDENT NEEDS

School boards in Ontario receive the majority of their funding from the provincial
government. This funding comes in two forms: provincial legislative grants and local
taxation in the form of education property tax. The provincial government sets the
education property tax rate. Municipalities in which the Board operates collect and remit
education property taxes on behalf of the Province of Ontario.  The Province of Ontario
provides additional funding up to the level set by the education funding formulas. 83
percent of the consolidated revenues of the Board are directly controlled by the provincial
government through the grants for student needs. The payment amounts of this funding
are as follows:

2022 2021

Provincial Legislative Grants           76          74

Education Property Tax           14          14

Grants for Student Needs           90          88DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 22

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

10. EXPENSES BY OBJECT

The following is a summary of the expenses reported on the Consolidated Statement of
Operations by object:

2022 2022 2021

Budget Actual Actual

Expenses:

Salary and wages 62,425 61,036 61,615

Employee benefits 11,131 11,065 10,842

Staff development 641 637 347

Supplies and services 9,128 9,264 8,130

Interest charges on capital 716 709 825

Rental expenses 14 247 228

Fees and contract services 8,460 9,257 7,001

Other 1,126 4,382 1,909

Amortization of tangible capital assets 7,449 7,966 7,586

101,090 104,563 98,483

11. BOARD PERFORMS DUTIES OF A MUNICIPAL COUNCIL

The Board performs the duties of levying and collecting taxes, conducting elections of
members, etc. in territory without municipal organization. The outlay by the Board in 2022
in respect of performing duties of municipal council is reported by area in a separate
statement.

Since January 1, 2009, the City of Thunder Bay collects the taxes in territory without
municipal organization on behalf of the Board.

Certain costs are recoverable through a levy on all rateable property in the area and other
approved costs are recoverable through an offset to the local taxation revenue.

DRAFT



A
u

g
u

s
t 

3
1
, 
2
0
2
2

N
o

te
s
 t

o
 C

o
n

s
o

li
d

a
te

d
 F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
e
n

ts

P
a

g
e

 2
3

T
h

e 
K

ee
w

a
ti

n
-P

a
tr

ic
ia

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
S

ch
oo

l 
B

oa
rd

 p
u

ts
 s

tu
d

en
ts

 fi
rs

t 
by

 c
re

a
ti

n
g

 a
 c

u
lt

u
re

 o
f l

ea
rn

in
g.

1
2
. 
T

A
N

G
IB

L
E

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 A
S

S
E

T
S

C
o

s
t

A
c

c
u

m
u

la
te

d
 A

m
o

rt
iz

a
ti

o
n

N
e

t 
B

o
o

k
 V

a
lu

e

B
a

la
n

c
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

1
, 

2
0

2
1

A
d

d
it
io

n
s

a
n

d
T

ra
n

s
fe

rs
D

is
p

o
s
a

ls

B
a

la
n

c
e

A
u

g
u

s
t

3
1

,
2

0
2

2

B
a

la
n

c
e

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

1
, 

2
0

2
1

A
m

o
rt

iz
a

ti
o

n
D

is
p

o
s
a

ls
,

W
ri
te

-o
ff

s
,

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts

B
a

la
n

c
e

A
u

g
u

s
t

3
1

,
2

0
2

2

B
a

la
n

c
e

A
u

g
u

s
t

3
1

, 
2

0
2

2

B
a

la
n

c
e

A
u

g
u

s
t

3
1

, 
2

0
2

1

L
a

n
d

2
,2

7
2

0
0

2
,2

7
2

0
0

0
0

2
,2

7
2

2
,2

7
2

L
a

n
d

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

6
,7

6
8

1
5

5
(2

2
)

6
,9

0
1

3
,2

4
9

4
5

1
(1

6
)

3
,6

8
4

3
,2

1
7

3
,5

1
9

B
u

ild
in

g
s

1
9

6
,2

2
8

7
,5

1
4

(2
,2

8
2

)
2

0
1

,4
6

0
6

6
,5

8
0

6
,8

9
1

(1
,7

1
8

)
7

1
,7

5
3

1
2

9
,7

0
7

1
2

9
,6

4
8

F
u

rn
it
u

re
 a

n
d

E
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

4
,5

1
3

6
5

9
0

5
,1

7
2

3
,3

0
4

4
9

3
0

3
,7

9
7

1
,3

7
5

1
,2

0
9

V
e

h
ic

le
s

7
6

6
2

5
5

0
1

,0
2

1
6

4
0

7
3

0
7

1
3

3
0

8
1

2
6

L
e

a
s
e

h
o

ld
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

5
7

7
0

0
5

7
7

2
9

5
5

8
0

3
5

3
2

2
4

2
8

2

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
in

 P
ro

g
re

s
s

1
4

5
3

0
6

7
0

0
0

0
6

7
1

4

T
o

ta
l

2
1

1
,1

3
8

8
,6

3
6

(2
,3

0
4

)
2

1
7

,4
7

0
7

4
,0

6
8

7
,9

6
6

(1
,7

3
4

)
8

0
,3

0
0

1
3

7
,1

7
0

1
3

7
,0

7
0

a
) 

A
s

s
e

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

A
s
s
e

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 v
a

lu
e

 o
f 
$

6
7

 (
2

0
2
1

 -
 $

1
4

) 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 a

m
o

rt
iz

e
d

. 
 A

m
o

rt
iz

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
s
e

 a
s
s
e

ts
 w

ill
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 a

s
s
e

t 
is

 p
u

t 
in

to
 s

e
rv

ic
e

.

b
) 

W
ri

te
-d

o
w

n
 o

f 
T

a
n

g
ib

le
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
A

s
s

e
ts

T
h

e
 w

ri
te

-d
o

w
n

 o
f 

ta
n

g
ib

le
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
a

s
s
e

ts
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
w

a
s
 $

n
il 

(2
0

2
1
 -

  
$

n
il)

.

c
) 

A
s

s
e

t 
in

v
e

n
to

ri
e

s
 f

o
r 

re
s

a
le

 (
a

s
s

e
ts

 p
e

rm
a

n
e

n
tl

y
 r

e
m

o
v

e
d

 f
ro

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e

)

T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 p

ro
p
e

rt
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
q

u
a

lif
y
 a

s
 “

a
s
s
e

ts
 p

e
rm

a
n

e
n

tl
y
 r

e
m

o
v
e

d
 f

ro
m

 s
e

rv
ic

e
”.

DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 24

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

13. ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

Accumulated surplus consists of the following:

2022 2021

Surplus

Operating accumulated surplus 18,503 13,935

Amounts internally designated for future use 17,993 18,261

Employee future benefits 0 (22)

School Generated Funds 1,141 1,120

Other 2,088 2,078

Accumulated Surplus 39,725 35,372

14. TRUST FUNDS

Trust funds administered by the Board amounting to $309 (2021 - $307) have not been included

in the consolidated statement of financial position nor have their operations been included in the

consolidated statement of operations.

15. ONTARIO SCHOOL BOARD INSURANCE EXCHANGE (OSBIE)

The Board is a member of the Ontario School Board Insurance Exchange (OSBIE), a reciprocal
insurance company licensed under the Insurance Act. OSBIE insures general public liability,
property damage and certain other risks. Liability insurance is available to a maximum of $24,000
per occurrence.

The ultimate premiums over a five year period are based on the reciprocal’s and the Board’s
actual claims experience.  Periodically, the Board may receive a refund or be asked to pay an
additional premium based on its pro rata share of claims experience.  The current five year term
expires December 31, 2026.

Premiums paid to OSBIE for the policy year ending December 31, 2022 amounted to $117 (2021
- $124).DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 25

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

16. CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Board has a contractual obligation through the Northwestern Ontario Student Services
Consortium for transportation services with various providers to July 31, 2028. The Consortium
has elected to invoke the mutual agreement clause to extend the transportation contract to July
2029. The value of the contract and portion attributable to the Board fluctuates year to year based
on ridership and the routes added or subtracted. For 2022 - 2023, the contracts are valued at
$9,124 of which $6,606 is estimated to be attributed to the Board.

Various proceedings and claims have been filed against the Board. The Board reviews the validity
of these claims and proceedings and management believes any settlement would be adequately
covered by its insurance policies and would not have a material effect on the consolidated
financial position or future consolidated results of operations of the Board. Accordingly, no
provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements for any liability that may
result. Any losses arising from these actions will be recorded in the year that the related litigation
is settled.

The collective agreements between the Board and CUPE, OSSTF and ETFO expired on August
31, 2022. Negotiations are currently taking place. Any expenditure for retroactive payments will
be expensed when a settlement is reached and amounts are known.

At year end, the following contracts are in place:

Project Contract Description
Estimated

Cost
Percent

Complete

Dryden High School Client / Architect Agreement 158 + net HST 56%

Dryden High School HVAC Upgrades 2,339 + net HST 93%

DRTCC Heating Upgrades 300 + net HST 95%

Golden Learning Centre Mechanical Upgrades 1,576 + net HST 88%

Keewatin PS Client / Architect Agreement 574 + net HST 91%

Keewatin PS Major Capital renovation 5,589 + net HST 60%

Sioux North High School New Construction 24,966 + net HST 98%

Sioux North High School Deficiency Correction Construction 2,351 + net HST 24%

Red Lake-Madsen PS HVAC Retrofit 1,777 + net HST 97%DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 26

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

17. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board is a government institution that provides primarily
education services.  No additional disclosure on a segmented basis was considered necessary
as the Board considers all the services and activities they provide to be encompassed in the
segment of education.

18. PARTNERSHIP IN NORTHWESTERN ONTARIO STUDENT
SERVICES CONSORTIUM

Effective the first day of the 2010-11 school year, the Board entered into an agreement with
Kenora Catholic District School Board and The Northwest Catholic District School Board and
Conseil Scolaire de District Catholique des Aurores Boreales in order to provide common
administration of student transportation in the Region.  This agreement was executed in an effort
to increase delivery efficiency and cost effectiveness of student transportation for each of the
boards.  Under the agreement, decisions related to the financial and operating activities of
Northwestern Ontario Student Services Consortium are shared.  No partner is in a position to
exercise unilateral control.

Each board participates in the shared costs associated with this service for the transportation of
their respective students through the Northwestern Ontario Student Services Consortium. The
Board’s consolidated financial statements reflect proportionate consolidation, whereby they
include the assets that it controls, the liabilities that it has incurred, and its pro-rata share of
revenues and expenses. The Board’s pro-rata share for 2022 is 73.13% (2021 – 70.19%).

The following provides condensed financial information.

2022 2021

Total
Board

Portion Total
Board
Portion

Financial Position:

      Financial Assets 123 79 645 409

      Liabilities 123 79 645 409

Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) 0 0 0 0

Operations:

      Revenues 8,043 5,835 6,667 4,642

      Expenses 8,043 5,835 6,667 4,642

Annual Surplus/(Deficit) 0 0 0 0DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 27

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

19. REPAYMENT OF “55 SCHOOL BOARD TRUST” FUNDING

On June 1, 2003, the Board received $9,353 from The 55 School Board Trust for its capital related
debt eligible for provincial funding support pursuant to a 30-year agreement it entered into with
the trust.  The 55 School Board Trust was created to refinance the outstanding not permanently
financed (NPF) debt of participating boards who are beneficiaries of the trust.  Under the terms of
the agreement, The 55 School Board Trust repaid the Board’s debt in consideration for the
assignment by the Board to the trust of future provincial grants payable to the Board in respect of
the NPF debt.

As a result of the above agreement, the liability in respect of the NPF debt is no longer reflected
in the Board’s financial position.

20. IN-KIND TRANSFERS FROM THE MINISTRY OF PUBLIC AND
BUSINESS SERVICE DELIVERY

The Board has recorded entries, both revenues and expenses, associated with centrally procured
in-kind transfers of personal protective equipment (PPE) and critical supplies and equipment
(CSE) received from the Ministry of Public and Business Service Delivery (MPBSD). The amounts
recorded were calculated based on the weighted average cost of the supplies as determined by
MPBSD and quantity information based on the board’s records. The in-kind revenue recorded for
these transfers is $3,350 (2021 - $730) with expenses based on use of $3,350 (2021 - $730) for
a net impact of $0.

21. IMPACT OF COVID-19

On March 11, 2020 the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health
Organization. Since this time, the pandemic has had significant financial, market and social
impacts, due to government imposed lockdowns and social distancing requirements. The Board
has experienced physical closure of schools based on public health recommendations,
implemented temporary virtual schooling, implemented mandatory working from home
requirements for those able to do so, and cancelled fundraising events and other programs.

The duration and ongoing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at this time.
Although all 2021-22 financial impacts were managed, the full extent of the financial impact on
the financial position and results of the Board for future periods is not possible to reliably estimate.DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 28

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

22. FUTURE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ADOPTION

The Board is in the process of assessing the impact of the upcoming new standards and the
extent of the impact of their adoption on its financial statements.

While the timing of standard adoption can vary, certain standards must be adopted concurrently.
The requirements in PS 1201 Financial Statement Presentation, PS 2601 Foreign Currency
Translation, PS 3041 Portfolio Investments and PS 3450 Financial Instruments must be
implemented at the same time. The Board has not adopted any new accounting standards for the
year ended August 31, 2022.

i. Standards applicable for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2022 (in effect for the
Board as of September 1, 2022 for the year ending August 31, 2023):

PS1201 Financial Statement Presentation replaces PS 1200 Financial Statement
Presentation. This standard establishes general reporting principles and standards for the
disclosure of information in government financial statements. The standard introduces the
Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses separate from the Statement of
Operations. Requirements in PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation, PS 3450 Financial
Instruments, and PS 3041 Portfolio Investments, which are required to be adopted at the
same time, can give rise to the presentation of gains and losses as remeasurement gains
and losses.

PS 2601 Foreign Currency Translation replaces PS 2600 Foreign Currency Translation.
The standard requires monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency
and non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency that are reported as fair value,
to be adjusted to reflect the exchange rates in effect at the financial statement date.
Unrealized gains and losses arising from foreign currency changes are presented in the
new Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses.

PS 3401 Portfolio Investments replaces PS 3040 Portfolio Investments. The standard
provides revised guidance on accounting for, and presentation and disclosure of, portfolio
investments to conform to PS 3450 Financial Instruments. The distinction between
temporary and portfolio investments has been removed in the new standard, and upon
adoption, PS 3030 Temporary Investments will no longer apply.

PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO) establishes the accounting and reporting
requirements for legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible capital assets
controlled by a government or government organization. A liability for a retirement
obligation can apply to tangible capital assets either in productive use or no longer in
productive use.DRAFT



August 31, 2022 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Page 29

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning.

PS 3450 Financial Instruments establishes accounting and reporting requirements for all
types of financial instruments including derivatives. The standard requires fair value
measurement of derivatives and portfolio investments in equity instruments that are
quoted in an active market. All other financial instruments will generally be  measured at
cost or amortized cost. Unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
presented in the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses.

ii. Standards applicable for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023 (in effect for the
Board for as of September 1, 2023 for the year ending August 1, 2024):

PS 3400 Revenue establishes standards on how to account for and report on revenue,
specifically differentiating between transactions that include performance obligations (i.e.
the payor expects a good or service from the public sector entity), referred to as exchange
transactions, and transactions that do not have performance obligations, referred to as
non-exchange transactions.

PSG-8 Purchased Intangibles provides guidance on the accounting and reporting for
purchased intangible assets that are acquired through arm’s length exchange transactions
between knowledgeable, willing parties that are under no compulsion to act.

PS 3160 Public Private Partnerships (P3s) provides specific guidance on the accounting
and reporting for public private partnerships between public and private sector entities
where the public sector entity procures infrastructure using a private sector partner.

DRAFT



Achievement

KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

2022-2023 BOARD IMPROVEMENT & EQUITY PLAN
The Keewat in-Patr ic ia  Dis t r ic t  School  Board puts  s tudents  f i r s t  by  creat ing a cu l ture  of   learn ing.

Board Improvement & Equity Plan Contents:

Mental Health, 
Wellbeing &
Engagement

 

Human Rights 
& Equity

 

Pathways
& Transitions

 

The Roots
at KPDSB

 

Glossary
& Resources

 

GOAL ACTIONS MEASUREMENT

A variety of relevant and
meaningful assessment data
is used by students and
educators in all classrooms to
continuously monitor learning,
to inform instruction and to
determine next steps.

System leaders, school administrators and educators actively participate in
learning

Teachers use classroom data to plan instruction
Target goals established by senior admin, administrators and teachers
to track student achievement in a timely manner

Thoughtful use of high-impact teaching strategies and instructional
practices including learning goals, success criteria and descriptive
feedback
Curriculum and student needs drive instruction
Use culturally relevant and responsive approaches to teaching and
learning
Intervention is provided first in the classroom
Teachers will:

Use learning goals
Examine examples of exemplars to understand how “at standard”
evidence looks
Co-construct success criteria with students
Gather evidence of student learning through observation, conversation
and product (triangulated evidence)
Provide feedback
Provide opportunities for peers' feedback
Set goals with students

Track alignment with curriculum

Track use of high impact teaching
strategies

Track use of culturally relevant and
responsive instruction

Teachers use classroom data to plan
instruction

Progress Monitoring Tools

Achievement: Curriculum, Instruction & Assessment



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

2022-2023 BOARD IMPROVEMENT & EQUITY PLAN
The Keewat in-Patr ic ia  Dis t r ic t  School  Board puts  s tudents  f i r s t  by  creat ing a cu l ture  of   learn ing.

GOAL ACTIONS MEASUREMENT

65% of students will meet or
exceed provincial standard
on the Grade 3, 6 and 9
EQAO Math.

65% of students will meet or
exceed provincial standard in
math report card
assessments.

65% of KPDSB students will
choose Grade 10 Academic
math after successful
completion of MTH1W

Ensure that Grade 9 and 10
credit accumulation
maintains or increases

All schools will have a numeracy plan/goal

Teachers will guide and support students to approach difficult
mathematical questions in multiple ways

Students will have opportunities to make their mathematical
thinking visible (conversation, observation, products) to
demonstrate their learning

Math teachers will work collaboratively to ensure shared
understanding of curriculum and pedagogy

Classroom Data

EQAO Data

Credit completion of Grade 9/10 math

Marks Distribution

Report Card Data

Achievement: Mathematics



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

2022-2023 BOARD IMPROVEMENT & EQUITY PLAN
The Keewat in-Patr ic ia  Dis t r ic t  School  Board puts  s tudents  f i r s t  by  creat ing a cu l ture  of   learn ing.

GOAL ACTIONS MEASUREMENT

75% of students will meet or
exceed the provincial
standard on Grade 3 & 6
EQAO Reading and Writing.
This requires new EQAO data
to make any changes

75% of students will meet or
exceed provincial standard in
reading and writing report
card assessments.

75% of first time eligible fully
participating students will be
successful on the OSSLT.

All schools have a goal/plan for literacy

Text is relevant and representative of the learners

Teachers will support student literacy development through:

Asking questions for different purposes (e.g., clarify meaning,
encourage reflection, detect bias, determine author's intent)

Systematically teach foundational reading skills within a
purposeful and meaningful context

Sorting and analyzing information from a variety of sources
(summarizing and synthesizing in order to understand the text
 
Understand, acquire, build on and apply oral communication,
reading, writing and media literacy knowledge and skills

Communicating their learning through a variety of modes and
forms for different purposes and audiences

Applying higher-order thinking skills in new contexts

Students will understand which strategies they can use when they
encounter difficult text

Students will understand strategies they can use when they come
to a word they do not know how to decode

Teachers of Grade 9 destreamed English will take part in
professional learning opportunities, including culturally relevant
instructional practices

Use of systematic and explicit instructional strategies for early
reading skills (decoding) including phonemic/phonological
awareness and Alphabet knowledge/phonics/word study

Classroom Data

EQAO Data

OSSLT Data

Credit completion of Grade 9/10 math

Marks Distribution

Report card data

Achievement: Literacy



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

2022-2023 BOARD IMPROVEMENT & EQUITY PLAN
The Keewat in-Patr ic ia  Dis t r ic t  School  Board puts  s tudents  f i r s t  by  creat ing a cu l ture  of   learn ing.

GOAL ACTIONS MEASUREMENT

90% of students in Grades 4 –
12 will identify they feel their
school is a safe and inclusive
environment.

50% of students will report
they feel comfortable seeking
support for their mental
health

All educators will use evidence-based strategies that support
creating safe, caring, equitable and inclusive cultures (restorative
practices, SMHO First 10 Days (andBeyond), SMHO resources)

All classrooms will embed the use of evidence-based strategies
to support mental health and well-being. Educators will spend 15
minutes throughout the week using SMHO Action Kit, SMHO First
10 Days (andBeyond)

Student census will be completed so that schools can meet the
needs of their students

System Climate Survey Data

School Climate Survey Data

Mental Health, Wellbeing & Engagement: Mental Health & Wellbeing

Mental Health, Wellbeing & Engagement: Student, Family & Community
Engagement

GOAL ACTIONS MEASUREMENT

Student attendance will
improve across the system.

Engagement of students,
families and communities will
increase across the system.

Attendance data and the relationship with student achievement
and engagement will be analyzed at the school and system level
at least monthly

Work with families, staff, community partners and agencies to
support students with attendance and re-engagement

Schools will plan transitions to be responsive to the needs of
students

Intentional planning/programming to meet the needs of students
who reengage and keep them engaged

Student Voice Opportunities

Monthly Attendance Data

Increase in number of community partners

*Intervention and progress are monitored
for individual students when needed

https://smho-smso.ca/wp-content/uploads/2020/08/The-First-10-Days.pdf
https://smho-smso.ca/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Student-Mental-Health-Action-Kit.pdf
https://smho-smso.ca/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/Student-Mental-Health-Action-Kit.pdf
https://smho-smso.ca/wp-content/uploads/2020/08/The-First-10-Days.pdf


KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

2022-2023 BOARD IMPROVEMENT & EQUITY PLAN
The Keewat in-Patr ic ia  Dis t r ic t  School  Board puts  s tudents  f i r s t  by  creat ing a cu l ture  of   learn ing.

GOAL ACTIONS MEASUREMENT

Schools will implement Grade
9 destreamed compulsory
courses

The Grade 9 Destreamed Science course (SNC1W) will be
implemented in all secondary schools

Schools will collect and report the enrollment in each of the
streams of Science, Math and English courses after Grade 9

Schools will collect and analyze data on student enrollment
in academic and secondary math courses.

All other Grade 9 core courses will be offered at the
Academic level

Credit accumulation, marks distribution,
credit rescue/recovery rates

Human Rights & Equity: Support the Implementation of Destreaming

Human Rights & Equity: Improve Student Inclusion in Schools

GOAL ACTIONS MEASUREMENT

System and school data is
equitable

KPDSB will have a reduction
of suspensions and expulsions
across Grades 4 – 12.

Improved attendance

Equity and bias training will be provided to educators, examining
the themes of power, privilege, identity and the impacts on
students

Achievement data, learning skills, student voice surveys and
suspension data will be analyzed in the fall and again in the
spring

Early identification practices will be aligned with the KPDSB IEP
process

Progressive discipline, including restorative practices will be used
in all schools

Equitable Data: Suspension data,
expulsion data, IEP data, attendance
data, report data, credit accumulation,
graduation rate, learning skills



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

2022-2023 BOARD IMPROVEMENT & EQUITY PLAN
The Keewat in-Patr ic ia  Dis t r ic t  School  Board puts  s tudents  f i r s t  by  creat ing a cu l ture  of   learn ing.

GOAL ACTIONS MEASUREMENT

79% of all KPDSB students will
graduate with an OSSD
within 5 years of beginning
Grade 9.

Increase the number of
students participating in job
skills programs and
experiential learning
opportunities

All students Grades 7 – 12
annually update their
Individual Pathways Plan (IPP)

Increase the number of
STEM-related programs and
courses

Track the numbers of students entering a university, college,
apprenticeship training program or other post-secondary
program following completion of secondary school on student
grad cards and in myBlueprint

 All students are supported to pursue pathways that reflect their
expressed interests, cultures, and life goals

Continue to provide equity of opportunity, initiatives, and
programs for students to support student success including:

Specialist High Skills Major (SHSM) programs
Dual Credits (School College Work Initiative)
Cooperative Education
KPDSB ConnectEd
Experiential Learning
Land-Based Learning
e-Learning

Use of strategic Gap-Closing Strategies (Reach-Ahead credits,
summer programs, tutoring, Day 20 report close the identified
gaps)

Students in Kindergarten to Grade 12 will connect career
pathways and transferrable skills through curriculum content to
help answer the questions: Who am I? What are my
opportunities? Who do I want to become? What is my plan to
achieve my goals?)

Grade 8 Exit Survey Data

Grade 12 Exit Survey Data

Graduation Rates 

Percentage of student participation in
Pathway programs such as SHSM, Dual
Credit, Cooperative Education 

Student Voice

Credit Accumulation in e-learning courses

Percentage of students who are annually
updating their IPP

Pathways & Transitions: Improve Graduation Rates & Readiness for
Future Success



KEEWATIN-PATRICIA DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD

2022-2023 BOARD IMPROVEMENT & EQUITY PLAN
The Keewat in-Patr ic ia  Dis t r ic t  School  Board puts  s tudents  f i r s t  by  creat ing a cu l ture  of   learn ing.

High Expectations for All Students

Equity

Anti-Oppression

Inclusion

The Roots at KPDSB

Innovation

Relationships

Culturally Responsive and Relevant Practices

Strength-Based

Student Voice

Personalization of Learning and Support

Maximized Learning Time



 December Board Meeting 
December 13, 2022 

 
 

 
The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board puts students first by creating a culture of learning. 

 
 

2022 Director’s Annual Report 
 

The Director’s Annual Report is a requirement for all school boards by the Ministry of Education. 
Here at KPDSB, we see the annual report as an opportunity to acknowledge and celebrate the 
work and achievements of our students and staff over the past year. The report includes 
information from January to December 2022. 
 
As you read the report, you will see examples of a board-wide focus on equity, efforts to 
improve achievement in all areas including literacy and math, offering increased pathway 
options, expanded experiential and extended learning opportunities, innovative programming 
and partnerships, our commitment to Reconciliation and so much more.   
 
We are proud of all that we have accomplished together in 2022 and look forward to continuing 
our work in 2023. To view the full 2022 Director’s Annual Report, please follow this link –
 https://www.kpdsb-dar.ca/2022/. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by, 
Christy Radbourne, Director of Education 

https://www.kpdsb-dar.ca/2022/


 

 

 

Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:  Advocacy  
 

 

600 
 
 

612 

 

 

 
Cross References 

 
Date Adopted: 09/10/2007 

Dates Reviewed: 11/11/2008; 10/01/2012; 
14/04/2015; 08/05/2018 

 
Review By: 2022 

Page 1 of 2 

Policy Statement 
 

 

It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) to advocate for quality 

public education utilizing governance structures which enable open and ongoing communication 

between School Boards and the provincial government.  These structures include, but are not 

limited to, partnership tables, regular meetings, open forums, and other means as determined by 

need.  

 

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board recognizes that the Ontario Public School Boards’ 

Association (OPSBA) is an important partner in advocating on behalf of Ontario Public School 

Boards generally.  KPDSB recognizes OPSBA’s role in advocating for public education by 

maintaining membership in OPSBA and electing representatives to participate on the OPSBA 

Board of Directors and other formal and informal OPSBA committees and task forces.  School 

Board communication with the Ontario government is an important activity to identify, discuss, 

and find solutions to policy and financial issues.     

 

Rationale 
 

 

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board believes that public advocacy is important to the 

development of an effective public education system and can improve governance of the school 

system at both the provincial and School Board levels.  

 

Definitions 
 

 

“Advocacy” is the promotion of public awareness with a view to influencing decision makers and 

promoting changes to laws and other government policies to advance the mission of a particular 

organization or group of people.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:  Advocacy  
 

 

600 
 
 

612 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Guidelines 
 

 

1. The administration shall, unless otherwise directed by the Board, renew the Board’s 

membership in the Ontario Public School Boards’ Association (OPSBA) on an annual 

basis.  

 

2. The use of School Board funds to support public advocacy for personal or partisan political 

agendas, or to promote or target a political party, candidate, or organization is prohibited.  

 

3. The use of School Board funds to attend events for specific political parties is prohibited.  

 

4. Expenditures in support of advocacy shall be reasonable in size and shall not adversely 

affect expenditures in support of student success and achievement.  



 

 

 

Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:    Donations 
 

 

600 
 
 

603 

 

 

 
Cross References 
Policies 
311, Secondary School Scholarships 
608, School Fundraising  
610, Surplus Asset Management and Disposal 
801, Use of Facilities, Grounds, and Equipment 
806, Joint School Capital Projects 

Date Adopted: 26/05/1998 
Dates Reviewed: 08/10/2002; 13/06/2006; 

12/01/2010; 14/01/2014 
Dates Revised: 11/04/2017 

 
 

Review By: 2020 

 
Page 1 of 3 
 

Policy Statement 
 

 
It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) to deny requests for 

donations for any and all purposes.  

 

It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board to provide, subject to guidelines 

below, other forms of assistance to non-profit organizations whose objectives are consistent with, 

or complementary to, those of the Board provided such assistance can be granted at no cost to 

the Board and does not interfere with the Board’s primary mandate to provided elementary and 

secondary education to pupils.  

 

It is the policy of the Board to accept, subject to the guidelines below, donations that in its opinion 

will enhance the education of its pupils and/or support other educational opportunities for them.  

 

Rationale 
 

 
The Education Act, R.S.O. 1990 c. E.2, as amended, established the duties and powers of District 

School Boards.  The prevailing legal view is that unless a duty or power is specifically granted by 

the Education Act, School Boards may not presume to have the duty or power.  There is no 

specific provision in the Education Act for School Boards to make donations.  

 

There is a provision in the Education Act, subsection 173 (2), for School Boards to award 

bursaries or prizes to their pupils under such terms and conditions as the Board may prescribe.  

Therefore, these would not be considered donations for the purposes of this Policy.  

 

The acceptance of donations of cash, equipment, and services may enable the Board to offer a 

type, or level, of programs and services to its pupils that the provincial funding model does not 

support.  

 

 

 



 

 

 

Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:    Donations 
 

 

600 
 
 

603 

 

 
 

 

Page 2 of 3 

Guidelines 
 

 

1. Donations by the Board 

 

a) All requests for cash donations received by Board staff shall be denied.  

 

b) Surplus assets having no market value, which are transferred to an organization or 

individual by the Board in accordance with KPDSB Policy 610 – Surplus Asset 

Management and Disposal, are not considered donations.  

 

c) Scholarships and awards, which are not considered donations, may be awarded to 

pupils attending Board schools in accordance with KPDSB Policy 308 – Good 

Citizenship Award and KPDSB Policy 311 – Secondary Scholarships and Awards. 

 

d) All expenditures of the Board must have a valid educational or administrative purpose 

and obtain reasonable value for the amount expended, so as not to be construed as 

having a donation element in part.  

 

2. Assistance to Non-Profit Organizations  

 
a) Assistance to non-profit groups making use of Board facilities and equipment shall be 

in the form of lower rental rates as governed by KPDSB Policy 801 – Use of Facilities, 

Grounds, and Equipment.  

 

b) Assistance to non-profit groups through student participation in fundraising shall be 

governed by KPDSB Policy 608 – School Fundraising.  

 

c) Non-Profit groups wishing to distribute material or make presentations requesting 

donations from all Board employees, or a group of Board employees (i.e., Bargaining 

Unit(s), School, or Region, etc.), must direct their request to the Director of Education, 

or Designate.  The Director of Education, or Designate, may approve such requests 

taking into consideration such factors as they may consider relevant in the 

circumstances.   

 

d) Any requests for employee donations through payroll deduction must be made to the 

Board.  The Board may approve such requests taking into consideration such factors 

as it may consider relevant in the circumstances.  



 

 

 

Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:    Donations 
 

 

600 
 
 

603 

 

 
 

 

Page 3 of 3 

3. Donations to the Board 
 

a) Any donation of money or real property to a school or the Board shall, if accepted, 

become the property of the Board.  

 

b) Authorization to accept donations on behalf of the Board is delegated to the Director 

of Education, Superintendent of Education, Superintendent of Business, and School 

Principals.  Decisions to accept donations shall be based on the expected benefit to 

pupils and any costs associated with the donation (i.e., maintenance of equipment 

being donated, etc.).  A donor of real property requesting a charitable donation receipt 

shall provide, at their own expense, a qualified third-party appraisal of the market value 

of the item(s) being donated.   

 

c) Donations of used computers and peripheral equipment shall only be accepted with 

the concurrence of the Learning Technology Manager.  

 

d) The Superintendent of Business shall establish and maintain a charitable registration 

in the name of the Board with the Canada Revenue Agency (CRA).  Receipts for 

donations shall be issued in accordance with CRA regulations.  Manual receipts shall 

not be issued for donations of less than twenty-five dollars ($25.00).  

 

e) The Superintendent of Business shall establish separate trust fund accounts for 

donations greater than five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) that will not be fully disbursed 

for a period longer than two (2) years from the date of the donation (i.e., scholarship 

and bursary funds, etc.).  The annual receipts, disbursements, and closing balance of 

such trust fund accounts shall be reported in the Board’s annual financial statements 

until such time as the funds are fully disbursed.  
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Accessibility Standards for  
                       Customer Service 

 

300 
 

332 

 

 

 
Cross Reference 
KPDSB Accessibility Plan / Special Education Plan 
Policies  
306, Use of Volunteers 
325, Access to Schools 
330, Character Development 
708, Respectful Working and Learning Environment 
 
Page 1 of 4 

Date Adopted: 08/06/2009 
Date Reviewed: 09/03/2010 

Dates Revised: 08/04/2014; 13/02/2018 
 
 
 

Review By: 2022 

 

Policy Statement 
 

 

It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) to provide an 

environment in all of its facilities that builds independence, dignity, and respect for our 

students, parents/guardians, the public, and our staff.  Further, the KPDSB is committed 

to giving people with disabilities the same opportunity of access to our services in the 

same location and in a similar way as these services are available to all others we serve.  

 

Rationale 
 

 

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board is committed to providing services to our 

students, parents/guardians, the public, and our staff that are free of barriers and biases.  

The KPDSB strives to ensure that key principles of independence, dignity, inclusion, and 

equality of opportunity are reflected and valued in our learning and working environments.  

Our conduct will demonstrate our belief in the strength diversity brings to our 

communities.  

 

Definitions 
 

 

“Customer” – a person who uses the services of the Board.  

 

“Assistive Device” – device(s) used by people with disabilities to help with daily living.  

Assistive devices include a rand of products such as wheelchairs, walkers, white canes, 

oxygen tanks, and electronic communication devices.  

 

“Service Animal” – an animal that is being used because of a person’s disability and this 

is either readily apparent or is supported by a letter from a medical practitioner.  



 

 

 

Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Accessibility Standards for  
                       Customer Service 

 

300 
 

332 

 

 

 
Page 2 of 4 
 

“Support Person” – a person who assists or interprets for a person with a disability as 

they access the services of the Board.  A support person is distinct from an employee 

who supports a student in the system.  

 

“Third Party Contractor(s)” – a person(s) or organization(s) acting on behalf of or as an 

agent of the Board (i.e., bus operators, psychologist(s), etc.).  

 

“Barriers to Accessibility” – means anything that prevents a person with a disability from 

fully participating in all aspects of services of the Board.  This includes, but is not limited 

to, a physical barrier, an architectural barrier, information or communications barrier, an 

attitudinal barrier, or a technological barrier.  

 

“Accommodation” – is a means, through reasonable efforts, of preventing and/or 

removing barriers that impede individuals with disabilities from participating fully in the 

services of the Board.  

 

Board Responsibilities  
 

 

1. The Board will make all reasonable efforts to ensure that all policies, practices, 

and procedures from the date of this policy forward, are consistent with the 

principles of independence, dignity, integration, and equality of opportunity to all 

with particular attention for persons with disabilities.  

 

2. The Board will welcome all members of the school and the broader community to 

our facilities by committing our staff and volunteers to providing services that 

respect the independence and dignity of persons with disabilities, such service to 

incorporate measures that include, but are not limited to, the use of assistive 

devices and service animals.  

 

3. The Board will provide accessible customer service training to all employees and 

volunteers, anyone involved in developing our policies, and anyone who provides 

goods, services, or facilities to customers on our behalf.  

 

4. Staff will be trained on accessible customer service within thirty (30) days after 

being hired.  Training will include:  

 



 

 

 

Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Accessibility Standards for  
                       Customer Service 

 

300 
 

332 

 

 

 
Page 3 of 4 
 

▪ Purpose of the Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005, and 

the requirements of the customer service standard; 

▪ Board’s policies related to the customer service standard; 

▪ How to interact and communicate with people with various types of 

disabilities; 

▪ How to interact with people with disabilities who use an assistive device, or 

require the assistance of a service animal or a support person; 

▪ How to use the equipment or device(s) available on-site, or otherwise, that 

may help with providing goods, services, or facilities to people with 

disabilities; and  

▪ What to do if a person with a disability is having difficulty in accessing the 

Board’s goods, services, or facilities.  

 

Staff will also be trained when changes are made to our accessible customer 

service policies.  

 

5. The Board will ensure that its policies and procedures related to the Accessibility 

for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005, are made available to the public and also 

ensure there is the capacity to provide communication about these policies and 

procedures in a format that takes into account a person’s disability(ies).  

 

6. The Board will ensure when services that are normally provided to a person with 

a disability are temporarily unavailable, such as access to an elevator, a 

distribution of service notice will be posted at the site and on the Board’s website.  

 

7. In order to monitor the effectiveness of the implementation of the Accessible 

Customer Service Standard, the Board will develop a process for receiving and 

responding to feedback.  Information about the feedback process will be readily 

available to the public and allow people to provide feedback using a number of 

methods.  

 

8. The Board will ensure that adherence to this policy can be achieved efficiently and 

effectively.  The Board and all its managers, and school-based administers, will 

take into account the impact on persons with disabilities when developing space 

plans, purchasing new equipment, designing new systems, or planning a new 

initiative.  

 



 

 

 

Policy Section:  School Administration 
 
Policy Name:  Accessibility Standards for  
                       Customer Service 

 

300 
 

332 

 

 

 
Page 4 of 4 
 

9. The Board will create a feedback process that will review the implementation of 

this policy with the Board’s various constituency groups.  Examples include Special 

Education Advisory Council (SEAC), Federations, Unions, citizens’ groups, and 

School Councils.  Methods could include the use of electronic means such as 

websites.  

 

10. The Board will establish a process for consulting with frontline staff and volunteers 

who have a role in implementing the expectations and procedures established 

under this policy to review its effectiveness.  

 

 



 

 

 

Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:  Accessibility Standards for  
                       Information and Communication   

 

 

600 
 
 

615 

 

 

 
Cross Reference 
Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 AODA 
Integrated Accessibility Standards, Ontario Regulation 191/11 
Ontario Human Rights Code  

Date Adopted: 11/12/2012 
Date Reviewed: 08/04/2014 

Date Revised: 13/02/2018 
 

Review By: 2022 
Page 1 of 4 
 

Policy Statement 
 

 

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) is committed to ensuring that people with 

disabilities have the same opportunity of access to its services as do all others it serves.  KPDSB 

is committed to meeting the accessibility needs of people with disabilities, in a timely manner, in 

the provision of services related to information and communications.  

 

Rationale 
 

 

The Keewatin-Patricia District School Board is committed to providing high quality services to its 

students, the public, and staff that are free of barriers and biases.  KPDSB strives to ensure that 

key principles of independence, dignity, inclusion, and equality of opportunity are reflected and 

valued in its learning and working environments.  KPDSB’s conduct will demonstrate its belief in 

the strength that diversity brings to its communities.  

 

Definitions 
 

 

“Information” includes data, facts, and knowledge that exist in any format, including text, audio, 

digital, or images, and that convey meaning.  

 

“Communications” means the interaction between two (2) or more persons or entities, or any 

combination of them, where information is provided, sent, or received.  

 

“Accessible Formats” include, but are not limited to, options such as large print, screen readers, 

braille, audio format, or captioning.  

 

“Conversion-Ready” is an electronic or digital format that facilitates conversion into an accessible 

format.  

 

“WCAG” refers to the World Wide Web Consortium Content Accessibility Guidelines.  

 



 

 

 

Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:  Accessibility Standards for  
                       Information and Communication   

 

 

600 
 
 

615 

 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Guidelines 
 

 

1. Responsibility  
 

▪ Supervisory Officers, Principals, and Department Managers will ensure that all staff, 

volunteers, and others providing services and programs on behalf of the KPDSB 

have received training in the requirements of the Integrated Accessibility Standards, 

including the Standards related to Information and Communication.  

▪ Initial training will be completed by January 1, 2014.    

 

2. Feedback 
 

▪ KPDSB will ensure that its processes for receiving and responding to feedback are 

accessible to persons with disabilities.  

▪ Upon request, KPDSB will provide or arrange for the provision of accessible formats 

and/or communication supports to facilitate feedback.  

▪ KPDSB will notify the public about the availability of accessible formats and 

communications support with regard to its feedback processes.  

▪ The above provisions will be in place by January 1, 2014 

 

3. Procurement 

 

▪ KPDSB and all its managers and school-based administration will, wherever 

practicable, incorporate accessibility criteria and features when procuring or 

acquiring goods and services, designing new systems, or planning a new initiative 

that are related to the provision of information and communications services.  

▪ The above approach will be in place by January 1, 2013.  

 

4. Provision of Information and Communications in Accessible Formats  
 

▪ Upon request, KPDSB will provide or arrange for the provision of accessible formats 

and communications supports for persons with disabilities to facilitate their access 

to the services of the KPDSB.  

▪ Accessible formats and communications supports will be provided in a timely 

manner that considers the person’s accessibility needs and at a cost no greater than 

the regular costs charged to other persons.  

▪ KPDSB will determine the suitability of an accessible format or communications 

support and, in doing so, will consult with the person making the request.  



 

 

 

Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:  Accessibility Standards for  
                       Information and Communication   

 

 

600 
 
 

615 

 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

▪ KPDSB will notify the public through websites, general publications, and other 

relevant means about the availability of accessible formats and communications 

supports.  

▪ The above provisions will be in place by January 1, 2014.  

 

5. Accessible Websites  
 

▪ KPDSB will ensure that, as of January 1, 2014, all new websites and web content 

on these sites will conform with the WCAG 2.0 at Level A.  

▪ KPDSB will ensure that, as of January 1, 2021, all its internet websites and web 

content will conform with WCAG 2.0 at Level AA.  

▪ These requirements do not include Live Captions or Pre-recorded Audio 

Descriptions.  

▪ These requirements apply to:  

● Websites and web content, including web-based applications, that KPDSB 

controls directly or controls through a contractual relationship that allows for 

modifications of the product; and  

● Web content published on a website after January 1, 2012.  

▪ Where KPDSB determines that meeting these requirements is not practicable, such 

determination will include consideration of:  

● The availability of commercial software or tools, or both; and  

● Significant impact on an implementation timeline that was planned or 

initiated before January 1, 2012.  

 

6. Education and Training Resources and Materials  

 

▪ KPDSB will, upon notification of need, provide educational or training resources or 

materials in an accessible format that takes into account the accessibility needs due 

to a disability of the person to whom the material is to be provided.  

▪ To do so, KPDSB will procure through purchase or obtain by other means an 

accessible or conversion-ready electronic format, where available.  

▪ If the resources cannot be procured or converted into an accessible format, KPDSB 

will arrange for the provision of comparable resources.  

▪ KPDSB will, upon notification of need, provide information on the requirements, 

availability, and descriptions of programs in an accessible format to persons with 

disabilities.  

▪ KPDSB will, upon notification of need, provide student records in an accessible 

format to persons with disabilities.  

▪ The above services will be in place by January 1, 2013.  

 



 

 

 

Policy Section:  Business and Administrative 
                          Matters 
 

Policy Name:  Accessibility Standards for  
                       Information and Communication   

 

 

600 
 
 

615 

 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 

7. Training for Program/Classroom Staff  
 

▪ KPDSB will ensure that all staff involved in program or course design, delivery, and 

instruction will be provided with accessibility awareness training related to these 

responsibilities.  

▪ KPDSB will keep a record of the training provided including the dates on which 

training was provided and the number of individuals to whom training was provided. 

▪ The above provisions for this training will be effective January 1, 2013.  

 

8. School Libraries  
 

▪ KPDSB will ensure that school libraries are able to provide, procure, or acquire an 

accessible or conversion-ready format of print resources upon request by a person 

with a disability.  

▪ KPDSB will ensure that school libraries are able to provide, procure, or acquire an 

accessible or conversion-ready format of digital or multimedia resources materials 

upon request by a person with a disability.  

▪ The first noted provision will have an effective date of January 1, 2015.  



 

 

 
 

Policy Section:  Curriculum and Program 
 
Policy Name:  Use of Copyright-Protected 
                       Works 

 
 

400 
 

403 

 

 

 
Cross Reference 
Copyright Modernization Act 
Fair Dealing Guidelines – Council of Ministers of Education Canada (CMEC) 
Copyright Consortium  
Policy  
303, School Improvement Planning  
 
Page 1 of 3 
 
 

Date Adopted: 13/11/2012 
Dates Revised: 11/02/2014; 11/04/2017 

 
Review By: 2020 

 
1 

Policy Statement 
 

 
It is the policy of the Keewatin-Patricia District School Board (KPDSB) to comply with the Fair 

Dealing Guidelines as developed by the Council of Ministers of Education Canada (CMEC) 

Copyright Consortium.  The KPDSB will communicate the Fair Dealing Guidelines to all school 

locations on an annual basis in order to ensure that all staff understand the obligations of the 

school Board in accordance with the Copyright Modernization Act.   

 

Rationale 
 

 
The Fair Dealing provision in the Copyright Act permits use of copyright-protected work without 

permission from the copyright owner or the payment of copyright royalties.  To qualify for fair 

dealing, two (2) tests must be passed.  

 

First, the dealing must be for a purpose stated in the Copyright Act: research, private study, 

criticism, review, news reporting, education, satire, and parody.  Educational use of a copyright-

protected work passes the first test.  

 

The second test is that the dealing must be fair.  In landmark decisions in 2004 and in 2012, the 

Supreme Court of Canada provided guidance as to what this test means in schools and post-

secondary educational institutions.  These guidelines apply to fair dealing in non-profit K-12 

schools and post-secondary educational institutions and provide reasonable safeguards for the 

owners of copyright-protected works in accordance with the Copyright Act, and the Supreme 

Court decisions.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

Policy Section:  Curriculum and Program 
 
Policy Name:  Use of Copyright-Protected 
                       Works 

 
 

400 
 

403 

 

 

Page 2 of 3 

Guidelines 
 

 

1. Teachers, instructors, professors, and staff members in non-profit educational 

institutions may communicate and reproduce, in paper or electronic form, short 

excerpts from a copyright-protected work for the purposes of research, private 

study, criticism, review, news reporting, education, satire, or parody.  

 

2. Copying or communicating short excerpts from a copyright-protected work under these 

Fair Dealing Guidelines for the purpose of news reporting, criticism, or review should 

mention the source and if given in the source the name of the author or creator of the 

work.  
 

3. A single copy of a short excerpt from a copyright-protected work may be provided or 

communicated to each student enrolled in a class or course:  

 

a) As a class handout;  

 

b) As a posting to a learning or course management system that is password protected 

or otherwise restricted to students of a school or post-secondary educational 

institution; and/or  

 

c) As part of a course pack.  

 

4. A short excerpt means:  

 

▪ Up to ten percent (10%) of a copyright-protected work, including a literary 

work, musical score, sound recording, and an audiovisual work;  

▪ One chapter from a book; 

▪ A single article from a periodical; 

▪ An entire artistic work (including a painting, print, photograph, diagram, 

drawing, map, chart, and plan) from a copyright-protected work containing 

other artistic works;  

▪ An entire newspaper article or page; 

▪ An entire single poem, or musical score, from a copyright-protected work 

containing other poems or musical scores; and/or 

▪ An entire entry from an encyclopedia, annotated bibliography, dictionary, 

or similar reference work.  

 



 

 

 
 

Policy Section:  Curriculum and Program 
 
Policy Name:  Use of Copyright-Protected 
                       Works 

 
 

400 
 

403 

 

 

Page 3 of 3 

5. Copying or communicating multiple short excerpts from the same copyright-protected 

work, with the intention of copying or communicating substantially the entire work, is 

prohibited.  

 

6. Copying or communicating that exceeds the limits in these Fair Dealing Guidelines may 

be referred to a supervisor or other person designated by the educational institution for 

evaluation.  An evaluation of whether the proposed copying or communication is permitted 

under fair dealing will be made based on all relevant circumstances.  

 

7. Any fee charged by the educational institution for communicating or copying a short 

excerpt from a copyright-protected work must be intended to cover only the costs of the 

institution, including overhead costs.  

 

8. Copying, scanning, or printing materials intended for one-time use is strictly prohibited.  

Materials intended for one-time use are workbooks and exercise books in which a student 

will record answers.  These are materials created and intended for each student to have 

their own copy.  Once a student completes the answers, these materials are of no use to 

another student.  Any copying from materials intended for one-time use, exposes the 

person making the copy, the teacher, the school, and the school Board to liability for 

copyright infringement.  This prohibition does not apply to reproducibles. A reproducible 

is not intended for one-time use but is sold or provided with the rights holder’s authorization 

to reproduce it for educational use.  

 

9. Employees who require assistance in determining whether copyrighted material may be 

reproduced for educational purposes may consult the following website: 

www.copyrightdecisiontool.ca  

 

http://www.copyrightdecisiontool.ca/



	Regular Board Meeting Package - Dec. 13, 2022 - Cover Page
	00.01 -  Dec 13, 2022 Board Meeting Agenda
	Minutes of the October 11, 2022 Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes - Inaugural Board Meeting - November 15, 2022
	Minutes of the November 29 2022 SPECIAL Board Meeting
	2021 22 Financial Statement Info for Board Packages
	KPDSB Management Report on 2021-22 Financial Statements
	DrAFT 21-22 Financial Statements Dec 8 2022
	Cover Page 2021-22
	KPDSB 2021-22 Financial Statements - DRAFT 12_13_22


	2022-23 Board Improvement and Equity Plan - Index  Glossary Removed - For December 2022 Board
	Board Report - 2022 Directors Annual Report
	Policy 612 Advocacy
	Policy 603 Donations
	Policy 332 Accessibility Standards for Customer Service
	Policy 615 Accessibility Standards for Information and Communication
	Policy 403 Use of Copyright-Protected Works
	Correspondence for Trustees for Mayor of Kenora dated Nov 22 2022

